

Durham E-Theses

Scattering of protons from helium

Begum, Sakina

How to cite:

Begum, Sakina (1972) Scattering of protons from helium, Durham theses, Durham University. Available at Durham E-Theses Online: http://etheses.dur.ac.uk/8705/

Use policy

 $The full-text\ may\ be\ used\ and/or\ reproduced,\ and\ given\ to\ third\ parties\ in\ any\ format\ or\ medium,\ without\ prior\ permission\ or\ charge,\ for\ personal\ research\ or\ study,\ educational,\ or\ not-for-profit\ purposes\ provided\ that:$

- a full bibliographic reference is made to the original source
- a link is made to the metadata record in Durham E-Theses
- the full-text is not changed in any way

The full-text must not be sold in any format or medium without the formal permission of the copyright holders.

Please consult the full Durham E-Theses policy for further details.

Academic Support Office, The Palatine Centre, Durham University, Stockton Road, Durham, DH1 3LE e-mail: e-theses.admin@durham.ac.uk Tel: +44 0191 334 6107 http://etheses.dur.ac.uk

SCATTERING OF PROTONS FROM HELIUM.

DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICS UNIVERSITY OF DURHAM

:

DECEMBER, 1972.



FOR THE DEGREE OF DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

SAKINA BEGUM, M.Sc. (DACCA)

ΒY

UNIVERSITY OF DURHAM

THESIS SUBMITTED TO THE

- -

_ ____

SCATTERING OF PROTONS FROM HELIUM

Abstract

The main work described in this thesis, is the original calculation of the excitation of helium by proton and of electron - capture process from helium by proton where the 2nd order potential introduced by Bransden & Coleman (1972) has been applied.

It begins with a discussion of the existing methods relevant to the present work and followed by the construction of a second - order potential. A critical survey of the previous work has also been presented and its relation to the present work and result is discussed.

The cross-sections for the following processes is calculated in the energy - range indicated

(i) $p + H_e(1S^2) \longrightarrow H^+(1S,2S,2p) + H_e(1S^2) 25 \text{ Kev} = 500 \text{ Kev}$ (ii) $p + H_e(1S^2) \longrightarrow H(1S) + H_e^+(1S) 30 \text{ Kev} = 10 \text{ Mev}$

The calculated cross - section along with existing results has also been presented and it is seen that the present method provides better results for the excitation process, but for the charge - exchange process, our results do not agree with the results of the experiment at high energies.

CONTENTS

- -

		Page				
CHAPTER 1	INTRODUCTION	1				
1.1	Derivation of the scattering amplitude					
1.2	The Born Series	9				
1.3	The Distorted wave approximation	12				
1.4	The Impulse approximation	16				
1.5	The Impact parameter method and the Truncated eigenfunction method	21				
1.6	Many - state approximation	28				
CHAPTER 2	SECOND_ORDER POTENTIAL	31				
2.1	General formalism	31				
2.2	Second - order potential	33				
2.3	The effective energy	35				
CHAPTER 3	EARLIER WORK ON EXCITATION	37				
3.1	The Born approximation	37				
3.2	The Second - Born approximation	39				
3.3	Eigenfunction expansion method	41				
CHAPTER 4	PRESENT CALCULATION ON EXCITATION	43				
4.1	Calculations	47				
4.2	The average excited energy	49				
4•3	Elastic scattering of protons	49				
4 = 4	The 2 ¹ S excitation of helium by protons	50				
4.5	The 2 ¹ p excitation of helium by protons	50				

•

Page

.

CHAPTER 5	EARLIER WORK ON CHARGE-EXCHANGE	51
5.1	Classical approximation	51
5.2	The First Born approximation	52
5.3	The Second-Born approximation	55
5•4	The Distorted wave approximation	57
5•5	The Impulse approximation	59
5.6	Atomic eigenfunction method	61
CHAPTER 6	PRESENT CALCULATION ON CHARGE- EXCHANGE	64
CHAPTER 7	NUMERICAL METHODS	73
CHAPTER 8	CONCLUSION	77
Appendix A		78
Appendix B		83
Appendix C		85
Appendix D		89
Appendix E		93
Acknowledgements	•	95
Figure Captions		96
Figures 1-18		96
Tables 1-4		98
References.		102

CHAPTER 1

Introduction

This thesis is mainly concerned with the excitation and the charge exchange of helium by protons. Examples of these reactions are:-

$$p + He (1S2) \longrightarrow p + He (1S2) (a)$$

$$p + He (1S2) \longrightarrow p + He (1S,2S) (b)$$

$$p + He (1S2) \longrightarrow H(1S) + He+ (1S) (c)$$

The reaction (a) is known as the elastic collision where there is no change of the internal energies of the particles in atoms and where the incident particle can be deflected through a certain angle. The reaction (b) is an excitation process where the particles in the atom may be excited to different energy levels and the reaction (c) is known as the electron capture or charge - exchange process where electron from one atom is exchanged to another ion during the collision. In electron capture either or both of the hydrogen atom and helium positive ion can be excited in the final state.

The present calculations are based on the paper written by Bransden & Coleman (1972) which we have applied to both the excitation and charge - exchange reactions given above and also to excitation of the 2¹P level of helium.

Before giving a description of that method, it is necessary to discuss some other methods which have been applied to the evaluation of the cross - sections for the reactions noted above. The methods we describe here both for Direct and Rearrangement collision.



1.1 Derivation of the scattering amplitude

For the sake of simplicity, let us consider a three particle system in which the particle 1 is incident on an atom composed of an electron 2 and a nucleus 3. Then the reactions for the system for both Direct and Rearrangement cases will be given by

espectively.	Our	inter	ntion	here.	is	to	find	an	
1 + (2 + 3)		3 +	(1 +	2)			(1)	
1 + (2 + 3)		1 +	(2 +	3)			(a)	

respectively. Our intention here, is to find an expression for scattering amplitude in both cases.

For Direct scattering, we know that the initial and final states consist of the free particle 1 moving relative to the bound particle (2 + 3). In the rearrangement system the initial state will be the same but the final state now consists of the free particle 3 and the bound particle (1 + 2). Let r_i , k_i be the position and momentum vectors of the incident particle 1 joining the centre of mass of (2 + 3) and R_1 , p_1 be the position and the momentum vectors of the particle 2 and 3 in the initial state. Similarly we can define r_f , K_f , R_2 , p_2 which are the necessary vectors represented by the final state. Also, we know, that the initial and final momentum are related to $\underline{k}_i = \mu_i \underline{v}_i$ and $\underline{k}_f = \mu_f \underline{v}_f$ where \underline{v}_i and \underline{v}_j are the initial and final velocities and μ_f and μ_f are the initial and final reduced masses respectively:

$$\mu_{i} = \frac{M_{i}(M_{f} + M_{3})}{M_{f} + M_{2} + M_{3}} = \mu_{f} \qquad (for Direct collision)$$

$$\mathcal{M}_{i} = \frac{M_{i} (M_{i} + M_{s})}{M_{f} + M_{2} + M_{3}}, \qquad \mathcal{M}_{f} = \frac{M_{3} (M_{f} + M_{2})}{M_{i} + M_{2} + M_{3}} \qquad \text{(for Rearrangement collision)}$$

 M_1, M_2, M_3 being the masses of the particles 1, 2 and 3 respectively.

Now the Schrodinger equation in the centre of mass system is

$$(H - E) \Psi_i(\underline{R}_i, \underline{r}_i) = 0 \qquad (1-1)$$

where the Hamiltonian H can be expressed as

$$H = K + V_1 + V_2 + V_3$$

$$= -\frac{1}{2M_{1}} \nabla_{R_{1}}^{2} - \frac{1}{2} \nabla_{R_{2}}^{2} + V_{1} + V_{2} + V_{3}$$

$$\sim -\frac{1}{2M_{5}} \nabla_{R_{2}}^{2} - \frac{1}{2} \nabla_{r_{1}}^{2} + V_{1} + V_{2} + V_{3} \qquad (1-2)$$

K is the kinetic energy operator and the potential V_1 acts between particles 2 and 3, V_2 between particles 1 and 3, and V_3 between particles 2 and 1, and μ is the reduced mass. The boundary condition for the Direct collision to be placed on ψ are that for, large \mathbb{R}_1 , \mathbb{r}_1 ,

$$\Psi \sim \sum_{n} \left[\delta_{no} e^{i \underline{k}_{i} \cdot \underline{\gamma}_{i}^{*}} + \frac{f_{n}(q) e^{i \underline{k}_{n} \underline{\gamma}_{i}^{*}}}{\underline{\gamma}_{i}^{*}} \right] \phi_{n}(\underline{R}_{i})$$
(1-3)

The first term in (1-3) represents the incident wave function and the 2nd term is the outgoing spherical wave describing the scattered particles and $f_{\rm h}(\Theta_{\rm l})$ is the scattering amplitude.

Since there is no incident wave function in the rearranged channel we require, when $\underline{R}_2 \& \underline{r}_2$ are both large

$$\Psi \sim \sum_{m} g_{m} (\Theta_{2}) \frac{e}{v_{3}} \phi_{m} (R_{2}) \qquad (1-4)$$

The differential cross - section for both direct and exchange scattering is determined by $\left| f_n(\theta_i) \right|^2$ or $\left| g_m(\theta_2) \right|^2$ respectively.

To obtain exact expressions for $f(\Theta_i)$ and $g(\Theta_i)$ we need the three - particles Green's function defined as

$$G_{10}(E_{i}+iE) = (E_{i}+iE - H_{0})^{-1}$$

$$G_{1}(E_{i}+iE) = (E_{i}+iE - H_{i})^{-1}$$

$$G_{2}(E_{2}+iE) = (E_{2}+iE - H_{2})^{-1}$$

$$G_{1}(E_{i}+iE) = (E_{i}+iE - H_{1})^{-1}$$

where G_0 , G_1 , G_5 , G_6 are known as the free particle, the initial, the final and the full Green's function respectively, and $H_1 = K + V_1$, $H_5 = K + V_3$. The solution of (1-1) is given by

$$\Psi_{i}^{\pm} = \phi_{i} + G_{i}^{\pm} v_{i} \Psi_{i}^{\pm}$$
 (1-5)

where (+) and (-) signs represents the outgoing and the incoming wave function respectively.

Using the exact defination of G_{i}^{+} , the equation (1-5) gives

$$\Psi_{1}^{\pm} = \phi_{1}^{\pm} + \frac{1}{E_{1}^{\pm} \pm i\epsilon - H_{1}^{\pm}} V_{1} \Psi_{1}^{\pm}$$
(1-6)

Similarly, we get

$$\psi_{f}^{\pm} = \phi_{f} + \frac{1}{E_{i} \pm ie - H_{f}} V_{f} \psi_{f}^{\pm} \qquad (1-7)$$

Now, the scattering matrix is

$$S_{ji} = \langle \Psi_{j}^{+} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \Psi_{j}^{+} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle + \langle \Psi_{j}^{-} - \Psi_{i}^{+} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

$$= \delta_{fi} + \langle \Phi_{f} | \left(\frac{1}{E_{i} - ie - H_{f}} - \frac{1}{E_{i} + ie - H_{f}} \right) \Psi_{j}^{+} \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

where

$$\langle \Psi_{F}^{+} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle = \delta_{fi}$$

Since $(E_{\xi} - H_{\xi})\Psi = o$ and $V_i = V_{\xi}$ we get

$$S_{fi} = \delta_{fi} - 2\pi i \delta(E_i - E_f) \angle \phi_f | v_f | \psi_i^{\dagger} > (1-8)$$

where we have used the relation

$$\lim_{E \to 0} \frac{E}{E^{1} + (E_{i} - E_{j})^{2}} = \pi \delta(E_{i} - E_{j})$$

The equation (1-8) is valid for the Direct collision reaction where $H = H_i + V_i = H_f + V_f$ and $V_i = V_f$ For the rearrangement collision, the conditions are that

$$H = H_i + V_i = H_f + V_f$$
 and $V_i \neq V_f$

Therefore, by applying the formula

$$\frac{1}{P} = \frac{1}{Q} - \frac{1}{Q} (P - Q) \frac{1}{P}$$
(1-9)
$$P = E_i + i\epsilon - H_i$$

where

ənd

$$Q = E_i + iE - H_F$$
 and $E_i = E_F$.

we get

$$G_{1i}^{\pm} = \frac{1}{E_{i} \pm i \in -H_{i}}$$
$$= G_{f}^{\pm} \left[1 + (H_{f} - H_{i}) G_{i}^{\pm} \right]$$

 $= G_{i_{f}}^{\pm} \left[(1 + (v_{i} - v_{f}) G_{i_{f}}^{\pm}) \right]$ (1-10)

Substituting (1-10) into (1-5), we get

$$\Psi_{i}^{\pm} = \Phi_{i} + G_{f}^{\pm} \left[i + (v_{i} - v_{f}) G_{i}^{\pm} \right] v_{i} \Psi_{i}^{\pm}$$

$$\Psi_{i}^{\pm} = \Phi_{i}^{+} + G_{i}^{\pm} \left[(v_{i} - v_{f}) \phi_{i}^{+} + V_{f} \Psi_{i}^{\pm} \right]$$

$$= \phi_i \left[1 + \frac{v_i - v_s}{\varepsilon_i + i\varepsilon - u_s} \right] + G_s^{\pm} v_f \psi_i^{\pm}$$

$$= \phi_i \left[\frac{E_i + i\epsilon - H_f + V_i - V_f}{E_i + i\epsilon - H_f} \right] + G_f^{\pm} V_f \psi_i^{\pm}$$

$$= \frac{i\epsilon \phi_i}{(E_i + i\epsilon - E_f)} + \frac{V_f \psi_i}{(E_i + i\epsilon - E_f)}$$
(1-11)

where we have used $(E_f - H_f)\phi_i = 0$ and also $(E - H)\phi_i = 0$ The scattering matrix can now be obtained in the same way as above and we find again that

$$S_{fi} = \delta_{fi} - 2\pi i \delta(E_i - E_f) \angle \Phi_f | V_f | \Psi_i^T \rangle \qquad (1-12)$$

These relations were first proved by Lippman (1966) in the time independent theory. It is also applicable in the time dependent theory.

Equation (1-8) can be written as

$$S_{fi} = \delta_{fi} - 2\pi i \delta(E_i - E_f) T_{fi} \qquad (1-13)$$

where T_{i} is known as the transition matrix from the initial state i to the final state f and is defined as

$$T_{fi} = \langle \phi_{f} | v_{f} | \psi_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle$$
$$= \langle \psi_{f}^{-} | v_{f} | \phi_{i} \rangle \qquad (1-14)$$

Equation (1-13) can be used to calculate the transition probability defined as

$$W_{fi} = \frac{\partial}{dt} | \zeta \psi_{f} | \psi_{i}^{\dagger} 7 |^{2}$$

= $\frac{2\pi}{\pi} | T_{fi} |^{2} \delta(E_{i} - E_{f})$ (1-15).

The required scattering amplitude is given by

$$f(\phi) = -\frac{M_{f}}{2\pi} W_{fi}$$
 (1-16)

and the total cross - section from the initial state i to the final state f is

$$\begin{aligned} Q_{if} &= \frac{2\pi}{\hbar} \frac{M_{f}}{M_{j}} \int \left| f(\theta) \right|^{2} d \pi \\ &= \frac{2\pi}{\hbar} \frac{M_{f}}{M_{j}} \int \left| T_{fj} \right|^{2} d \pi \end{aligned}$$
(1-17)

1.2 The Born Series

From the previous chapter we know that the transition probability from the initial state i for the final state f is

$$W_{fj} = \frac{2\pi}{\pi} \left| T_{fj} \right|^2$$

where

$$T_{fi} = \langle \dot{\phi}_{f} | V_{3} | \Psi_{i}^{\pm} \rangle$$
 (1-18)

As it is very difficult to calculate the transition matrix keeping the exact expressions $\psi_i^+ \circ \psi_i^-$,

various approximations have been introduced. One of them is the Born approximation which can be described as below. The Born approximation is expected to be valid for higher energies.

Also from equation (1-5), we find

$$\Psi_{i}^{\pm} = \phi_{i} + G_{i}^{\pm} \nabla_{i} \Psi_{i}^{\pm}$$

$$= \phi_{i} + G_{i}^{\pm} \nabla_{i} \phi_{i}$$

$$\therefore \neq_{i} (1 + G_{i}^{\pm} \nabla_{i}) \phi_{i}$$
(1-19)

Therefore

$$T_{fi} = \langle \phi_{f} | \psi_{f} | (1 + G^{\dagger} v_{i}) \phi_{i} \rangle \qquad (1-20)$$

We also know from the previous section that

$$= \frac{1}{(E_{i} \pm ie - H_{i})(1 - \frac{V_{i}}{E_{i} \pm ie - H_{i}})}$$

$$= \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}} (1 - V_{i} \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}})$$

$$= \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}} (1 + V_{i} \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}} + V_{i} \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}} \frac{\pm}{V_{i} \frac{\pm}{G_{1i}}} + \cdots) (1-21)$$

Similarly we can express G^{\pm} in terms of G^{\pm}_{0} which can be expressed as the series

$$G_{1}^{\pm} = G_{0}^{\pm} (1 + V_{0} G_{0}^{\pm} + V_{0} G_{0}^{\pm} V_{0} G_{0}^{\pm} + \cdots) \qquad (1-22)$$

The equation (1-20) can be expressed either in terms of G_i or G_0 and we find

$$T_{fi} = 4\phi_{f} | v_{f} | \phi_{i} \rangle + 4\phi_{f} | v_{f} | G_{i}^{\dagger} \phi_{i} \rangle + 4\phi_{f} | v_{f} | v_{i} | G_{i}^{\dagger} \phi_{i} \rangle + \dots (1-23)$$

$$= \langle \phi_{g} | v_{g} | \phi_{i} \rangle + \langle \phi_{g} | v_{g} | \phi_{i} \phi_{i} \rangle + \langle \phi_{g} | v_{g} | v_{i} \phi_{i} \rangle + \cdots (1 - 24)$$

The series (1-23) and (1-24) are both known as Born Series. The first term of this series is known as the first Born approximation to the scattering amplitude. Similarly when we add the second term with the first term we obtain the second Born approximation. In the same way, we can define the third Born approximation, but for high energies it is believed that the third and the other terms of the Born Series can be neglected.

۰.

The convergence of the Born Series for potential scattering has been discussed by Kohn (1952), Jost and Pais (1951), Manning (1965), but the problems accountered in the three particle system are rather different. Recently Dettmann & Leibfried (1968), Rubin et al (1966, 1967) have concluded that the Born expansion for the three particle system with short range forces converges for all energies for both the Rearrangement and the Direct collisions. No proof of the Born series for particles interacting via the long range coulomb potential is available. The previous work based on this method for the Direct and the Rearrangement collision will be discussed in Chapter 3 and Chapter 5 respectively.

1.3 The Distorted wave approximation

The amplitude in the Born approximation is the matrix element of the interaction between the colliding systems taken between unperturbed wave - functions. It is possible to introduce a similar matrix element but taken with respect to wave - functions that are perturbed or'distorted' in some predetermined fashion, this idea is the basis of the distortion method. In general the Born approximation crosssections are too large at low energies and the distorted wave approximation is often quite effective in reducing the cross - sections for about the right order of magnitude. From equation (1-19), we find

$$\psi_{i}^{+} = \phi_{i}^{-} + \frac{(H - H_{i})}{E + i \epsilon - H} \phi_{i}^{-}$$
 (1-25)

and

$$\Psi_{f}^{-} = \phi_{f} + \frac{(H - H_{f})}{E + i\epsilon - H} \phi_{f}^{-}$$
 (1-26)

where

$$H = H_i + V_i = H_s + V_s$$

Similarly, for some other Hamiltonian $H^{\prime \prime}$, we get

$$\chi_{i}^{+} = \varphi_{i}^{+} + \frac{(H'-H_{i})}{E+i\epsilon-H'}\varphi_{i}^{+}$$
 (1-27)

$$\chi_{f} = \phi_{f} + \frac{(H' - H_{f})}{E + i\epsilon - H'}$$
 (1-28)

Substituting (1-27) into (1-25), we find

$$\psi_{i}^{+} = \chi_{i}^{+} - \frac{(H'-H_{i})\phi_{i}}{E+i\epsilon - H'} + \frac{(H-H_{i})\phi_{i}}{E+i\epsilon - H}$$
(1-29)

-12-

From (1-9), we see that

$$\frac{1}{E + ie - H'} = \frac{1}{E + ie - H} \left[I + \frac{(H' - H)}{E + ie - H'} \right]$$
(1-30)

Therefore, (1-29) gives

· _

$$\Psi_{i}^{+} = \chi_{j}^{+} - \frac{(H'-H_{i})\phi_{i}}{E+iE-H} \left[1 + \frac{(H'-H)}{E+iE-H} \right] + \frac{(H-H_{i})\phi_{i}}{E+iE-H}$$

___ ...

$$= \chi_{i}^{+} + \frac{1}{E + i\epsilon - H} \left[(-H' + H_{i} + H - H_{i}) - \frac{(H' - H)(H' - H_{i})}{E + i\epsilon - H'} \right]$$

$$= \chi_{i}^{+} + \frac{(H-H')}{E+iE-H} \left[I + \frac{(H'-H_{i})}{E+iE-H'} \right] \varphi_{i}$$

$$=\chi_{1}^{+} + \frac{(H-H')}{E+iE-H}\chi_{1}^{+}$$

(1-31)

Similarly,

$$\Psi_{f} = \chi_{f} + \frac{H - H}{E + i \epsilon - H} \chi_{f}^{-}$$
 (1-32)

.

.

.

Let

$$T_{fi} = \angle \Phi_{f} | H - H_{f} | \Psi_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle = \angle \Psi_{f}^{-} | H - H_{i} | \Phi_{i} \rangle$$

$$T_{fi} = \angle \Phi_{f} | H' - H_{f} | \chi_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle = \angle \chi_{f}^{-} | H' - H_{i} | \Phi_{i} \rangle$$

Then

$$T_{fi} - T_{fi}'$$

$$= \langle \Phi_{f} | H - H_{f} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle - \langle \Phi_{f} | H' - H_{f} | \chi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \Phi_{f} | H - H_{f} | (\chi_{i}^{+} + \frac{(H - H')\chi_{i}^{+}}{E + i\epsilon - H}) > - \langle \Phi_{f} | H' - H_{f} | \chi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \Phi_{f} | H - H' | \chi_{i}^{+} \rangle + \langle \Phi_{f} | \frac{(H - H')(H - H_{f})}{E + i\epsilon - H} | \chi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \Psi_{f}^{-} | H - H' | \chi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$

Similarly,

$$T_{fi} - T_{fi} = 2 \Psi_f^{-} | H - H' | x_i^{\dagger} >$$

Similarly

$$T_{fi} - T_{fi} = 2x_{f} | H - H' | \psi_i^{\dagger} >$$

Therefore

$$2\Psi_{f}^{-}|_{H} - H'|_{x_{i}^{+}}^{+} = 2\pi_{f}^{-}|_{H} - H'|_{Y_{i}^{+}}^{+} >$$

Therefore

$$T_{fi} = T_{fi} + \angle \Psi_{f}^{-} | H - H' | \varkappa_{i}^{+}$$

$$= T_{fi} + \angle \chi_{f}^{-} | H - H' | \Psi_{i}^{+}$$

$$(1-33)$$

Suppose

 $H = H_{i} + U_{i} + W_{i} = H_{f} + U_{f} + W_{f}$ where H_{i} and H_{f} are the initial and final unperturbed Hamiltonians respectively. U_{i} and U_{f} are arbitrary potentials respectively. Writing $H = H^{2} + W_{i} = H^{2} + W_{f}$ where $H^{2} = H_{i} + U_{i} = H_{f} + U_{f}$ from (1-33), we get

$$T_{F_{i}} = \langle \varphi_{F} | v_{f} - w_{i} | x_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle + \langle \psi_{F}^{-} | w_{i} | x_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle \qquad (1-34)$$

$$T_{fi} = \langle s_{f} | V_{i} - W_{f} | \Phi_{i} \rangle + \langle s_{f} - | W_{f} | \Psi_{i}^{+} \rangle$$
(1-35)

where to avoid confusion, the eigen functions of H['] has been denoted by ξ_{f}^{\pm} . The Distorted Born approximation for T_{fi} is obtained by replacing ψ_{i}^{\pm} by χ_{i}^{\pm} in (1-35) i.e.

$$T_{F_{i}} = \langle S_{F}^{-} | V_{i} - W_{f} | \Phi_{i} \rangle + \langle S_{F}^{-} | W_{f} | x_{i}^{+} \rangle$$
(1-36)

Equations (1-34 and (1-36) are both known as the Distorted wave Born approximation, which is the first term in a Distorted wave Born Series.

1.4 The Impulse approximation

From the previous section, we know that the transition probabilities for the initial state i for the final state f can be defined as

$$T_{fi} = \langle \phi_f | v_f | \psi_i^{\dagger} \rangle \qquad (1-37)$$

Since the exact wavefunction ψ_i^{\dagger} is very difficult to calculate in a true three body approximation, the impulse approximation, has been introduced by Chew (1950) in which the three body wave function ψ_i^+ is replaced by a superposition of wave - functions relating to two particle scattering. This idea of Chew (1950), has been elaborated by Askin and Wick (1952) and Chew and Wick (1952). Also, at the same time, Chew and Goldberger (1952) extended the idea which is applicable to the Direct collision only. Prodhan (1957) first extended the method to the calculation of the charge exchange process using a slightly different version of the We present the formulation given by . impulse approximation. McDowell (1961) which is applicable for both Direct and Rearrangement processes.

We consider the system given in section (1.1). From equation (1-19), we know that

$$\Psi_i^{\dagger} = \Lambda^+ \Phi_i^{\dagger}$$
$$\Lambda^+ = I + \kappa^+ V_i$$

where

So the equation (1-37) can be written as

$$T_{fi} = \langle \phi_{f} | v_{f} | \Omega^{\dagger} \phi_{f} \rangle \qquad (1-38)$$

-16-

To obtain the impulse approximation we need to express the three-body Møller operators Λ^+ in terms of the two-body operators $\stackrel{+}{\bigvee_{ij}}$, which satisfies the equation.

$$W_{ij}(m)\chi_{m} = \left(1 + \frac{V_{ij}}{E_{m} - H_{o} - V_{ij} + i\epsilon}\right)\chi_{m}$$
(1-39)

where V_{ij} is the interaction potential between the particle i and the particle j. The wave function χ_m satisfies the differential equation

$$(H_{o} - E_{m})\chi_{m} = 0$$

and $\psi_{m}^{+}(ij)$ describes the motion under the potential V_{ij} alone,

$$(H_0 + V_{ij})\Psi_m^+(ij) = E_m \Psi_m^+(ij)$$

which implies that $\Psi_m^+(ij) = W_{ij}^+ \chi_m$ (1-40)

Now

$$G^{+} = \frac{1}{E - H + iE}$$

So with the help of the formula (1-9) above we can express G_1^+ in the following form

$$G_{1}^{+} = \frac{1}{(E_{m} - H_{0} - V_{ij} + i\epsilon)} + \frac{1}{(E_{m} - H + i\epsilon)}(E_{m} - H_{0} - V_{ij} + i\epsilon - E + H - i\epsilon)$$

$$\times \frac{1}{(E_{m} - H_{0} - V_{ij} + i\epsilon)}$$

Openating both sides by Vij, we get

$$G_{1}^{+}V_{ij} = \frac{V_{ij}}{(E_{m}-H_{o}-V_{ij}+i\epsilon)} + \frac{V_{1j}}{(E_{m}-H+i\epsilon)} (E_{m}-H_{o}-V_{ij}-E+H)$$

$$\times \frac{1}{(E_{m}-H_{o}-V_{ij}+i\epsilon)} V_{ij} (1-41)$$

From equation (1-39), we get

$$\frac{V_{ij}}{(E_m - H_o - V_{ij} + i\epsilon)} = W_{ij}(m) - 1$$

-18-

Therefore from equation (1-41) we find

$$\begin{array}{c} + \\ G_{1} V_{ij} = (W_{ij} (m) - 1) + G_{1}^{+} [(E_{m} - E) + V_{12} + V_{13} + V_{23} - V_{ij}] (W_{ij} (m) - 1) \\ (1-42) \end{array}$$

Let

$$(W_{ij}^{+}(m) - 1) = b_{ij}^{+}(m)$$

Then from (1-42), we get

$$G_{1}^{+} \vee_{ij} = b_{ij}^{+}(m) + G_{1}^{+} \left[(E_{m} - E) + V_{12} + V_{13} + V_{23} - V_{ij} \right] b_{ij}^{+}(m)$$

$$(1-43)$$

Substituting (1-43) in (1-38), we now obtain

$$T_{if} = \angle \phi_{i} | v_{f} | (w_{i3}^{+} + w_{i2}^{+} - 1) \phi_{i} ?$$

$$+ \angle \phi_{f} | v_{f} | G^{+} [(v_{23}, (b_{13}^{+} + b_{12}^{+})] \phi_{i} ?$$

$$+ \angle \phi_{f} | v_{f} | G^{+} (v_{13} b_{12}^{+} + v_{12} b_{13}^{+}) \phi_{i} ?$$

$$(1-44)$$

The equation (1-44) is known as the impulse approximation which can be applied for both Direct and Rearrangement collision. This expression is much too complicated to be used in practical calculations and further approximation are made.

If the collision is rapid, the influence of the binding potential $V_{2\,3}$, during the collision is small and can be

neglected. In addition at high energies it is reasonable to neglect the influence of multiple scattering in the 3rd term. The impulse approximation is then

$$T_{fi}^{IMP} = \langle \varphi_{f} | V_{fi} | (W_{13}^{+} + W_{12}^{+} - i) \varphi_{i} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \varphi_{f} | V_{fi} | \varphi_{i}^{IMP} \rangle \qquad (1-45)$$

where

$$\phi_{i}^{\text{IMP}} = (w_{13}^{+} + w_{12}^{+} - 1) \phi_{i}^{+}$$

For the excitation process, the impulse approximation can be given as

$$T_{f_{i}}^{TMP} = \langle \phi_{f} | V_{12} + V_{13} | (W_{12} + W_{13} - 1) \phi_{i} \rangle$$
(1-46)

where

$$\phi_{i} = e \quad \chi_{i}^{i}(\underline{B}_{i})$$

 $\phi_{f} = e^{ik_{f}} \mathcal{K}_{f}(\underline{R})$

 $W_{12}^{+} = 1$

and

$$T_{fi}^{IMP} = \langle \phi_{f} | V_{i3} | W_{i3}^{\dagger} \phi_{i} \rangle$$
 (1-47)

where

The equation (1-46) is known as the post form of the impulse approximation, because that contains the interaction potential V_{\pm} . We can also define the prior form of the impulse approximation, which is given by

$$T_{fi}^{-TMP} = \angle \phi_{f}^{-TMP} | V_{i} | \phi_{i} \gamma$$

$$= \angle (W_{13} + W_{12} - 1) \phi_{f} | V_{i} | \phi_{f} \gamma$$
(1-48)

For excitation process, we get $V_i = V_f$ but for the rearrangement process V_i will be different from V_f . The application of the above method will be described in Chapters 3 and 5.

This method is defective in several respects. The potentials have only in part been eliminated by replacing them with two body scattering amplitude, the initial and final interactions appear asymmetrically which may produce a post - prior discrepency. Both these difficulties can be overcome by using Fadeev's method (1961a, 1961b). A slightly different formulation of Fadeev's approach has been given by Lovelace (1964a), which is more approximate for three particle collision. In this case the initial and final states consists of a bound system and a free particle. These methods are discussed in the books by Bransden (1970) and McDowell and Coleman (1970).

1.5 The impact parameter method and the truncated eigen function method

A very great simplification can be made in the theory of the scattering of atoms by atoms or ions, because the wave-length associated with the relative motion of the colliding particles is usually very small compared with atomic dimension. The wave-length λ of a proton of mass M and velocity V is given by

$$\mathcal{T} = \frac{\mathcal{L}}{2\pi} = \frac{\pi}{MV}$$

The reduced wave-length π is equal to the Bohr radius of the hydrogen stom s_b , when $V \approx 10^5$ cm sec⁻¹, which corresponds to a kinetic energy by less than $(\overline{100})$ ev . For kinetic energies with which we are concerned, which extend from lev to several Mev, Λ is always much smaller than the range of interaction, which is certainly greater than a₀. Since the proton is the lightest projectile, for all other atom the inequality $\pi < 4a_{o}$ will be satisfied. Under these short wave-length conditions, it is generally possible to define classical trajectories which are followed by the colliding For the trajectory to be well defined, it is also atoms. necessary for the uncertainty, A0 in the angle of scattering $\Delta \Theta \approx \frac{\Delta P}{P}$, where to be small compared with e . We have ΔP is the uncertainty in the transverse momentum transferred to an incident particle of momentum p. As the range of the interaction is of order a_{\circ} , $\Delta P \simeq \frac{\pi}{a_{\circ}}$ and it follows that classical condition will apply if $\theta \neq \frac{1}{Pa_{c}}$. The critical is less than 1° for protons with energies of angle a few tens of electron volts, and is smaller still for other nuclei with the same energy. As experimental arrangements

exclude very small angles, this is not a practical limitation and the motion of colliding atoms can be described classically, except in certain circumstances, in which interference effects, arising from a difference in phase of the wave - function associated with different classical paths, are of importance. In contrast to the motion of the heavy particles, which can accurately taken to be classical, the electronic motion which is associated with discrete states must be described by quantum mechanics. (Bransden, 1972).

This approximation is a good approximation unless the impact energy is very low (Bates and Boyd, 1962a,b). Also in the impact parameter treatment the nuclear assumed to behave like classical particles and quantum perturbation theory is applied to determine the change of a transition from one electronic state to another.

Let us consider the impact parameter method for both direct and rearrangement collision. Let <u>R</u> be the position vector of the particle 1 relative to 3 and let $\underline{r_1}$, $\underline{r_2}$, \underline{r} be the position vectors of the electron relative to 1, 3 and the centre of mass of <u>R</u> respectively. Let υ be the relative velocity of the proton which remains constant and which is moving parallel to the z - axis. Let P be the perpendicular distance of the proton and the z axis which is known as the impact parameter and before collision the condition related to is $\underline{R} = f + \upsilon^{\dagger}$, $z = \upsilon^{\dagger}$ and $\upsilon \cdot f = 0$ The complete electronic wave - function $\psi(\underline{r}, t)$ satisfies the time - dependent Schrodinger equation (in atomic units)

 $H\Psi(\underline{r},t) = i \frac{\partial \Psi(\underline{r},t)}{\partial t}$ (1-49)

-22-

where H is the hamiltonian as $H = -\frac{1}{2}V_2^2 + V_{12} + V_{13} + V_{23}$ and V_{12} , V_{13} and V_{23} can be expressed by the help of coulomb potentials.

Now, we can expand $\psi(r,t)$ either in the form of

$$\sum_{n} a_{n}(t)\phi_{n}(\mathbf{r},t)e \qquad (1-50)$$

or in the form of

$$(ivz/z - iv^2t/8 - ib_qt)$$

 $\sum_{m} b_m(t) \phi_m(\mathbf{r}, t) e$ (1-51)

where the coefficients $a_n(t)$ and $b_m(t)$ are time dependent function. ϕ_n and ϕ_m are the wave functions of the bound states before collision and after collision respectively.

From (1-50) and (1-51) we can calculate the coefficients $a_n(t)$ or $b_m(t)$ in the following way.

 $a_n(t) = \int \Psi(\mathbf{r}, t) \phi_n^*(\mathbf{r}, t) \exp(i\upsilon z/2 + i\upsilon^* t/8 + id_p t)$

Similarly,

$$b_{m}(t) = \int \Psi(\mathbf{r}, t) \phi_{m}^{*}(\mathbf{r}, t) \exp(-i\omega 2/2 + i\omega^{2}t/8 + i\beta_{q}t)$$

So the probability amplitude for finding the system either in the n'th level or in the m'th level can be obtained by

$$|a_n(+\infty)|^2$$
 or $|b_m(+\infty)|^2$ respectively.

Total cross - section can be obtained by using the following formula

$$a = \int I f df 2 \pi d_{0}^{2} \qquad (1-52)$$

where I is $|a_n(+\infty)|^2$ or $|b_m(+\infty)|^2$ for the excitation or charge exchange process respectively.

The Variational Principle.

But to get the exact solution of (1-49) we can apply the variational principle, defined as

$$I = \int \psi^* (H - i \frac{\partial}{\partial t}) \psi dt$$

where ψ and ψ^{\star} are the total wave functions which satisfies the boundary condition

$$\Psi = \Psi + \delta \Psi , \quad \Psi^* = \Psi^* + \delta \Psi^* \quad \text{when } r \neq \infty$$

which requires
$$\delta \Psi(\mathbf{r}, t) = 0$$

and
$$\delta \Psi^*(\mathbf{r}, t) = 0 \quad \text{as} \quad t \to \pm \infty$$

The trial function can be expressed as below

$$\Psi(\underline{r}, t) = \sum_{n} q_{n}(t) \varphi_{n}(\underline{r}, t) \exp(-i\upsilon z/2 - i\upsilon^{2} t/8 - i d_{p} t) + \sum_{m} b_{m}(t) \varphi_{m}(\underline{r}, t) \exp(i\upsilon z/2 - i\upsilon^{2} t/8 - i b_{q} t) + \gamma(\underline{r}, t)$$
(1-53)

where $\gamma(x,t)$ is a function which can be represented by the set of eigen functions with the nucleus 2 or 3, but neither the initial nor the final state is included in either set. Consequently $\gamma(x,t)$ is orthogonal ito $\phi_n(x,t)$ and $\phi_m(x,t)$ so that it has the expressions

$$\begin{aligned} \gamma(\underline{r},t) &= \sum_{\substack{p\neq i \\ p\neq i}} d_{p}(t) \phi_{p}(\underline{r},t) \exp(-i\upsilon z/2 - i\upsilon^{2} t/8 - i\omega_{p} t) \\ &= \sum_{\substack{q\neq f}} b_{q}(t) \phi_{q}(\underline{r},t) \exp(i\upsilon z/2 - i\upsilon^{2} t/8 - i\beta_{q} t) \end{aligned}$$
(1-54)

The equation (1-53) is very difficult to solve. So some other approximations must be used. We now, describe the two-state approximation following the method due to Bates (1958).

The Two-state approximation.

In this case only the initial and final states are included

in the trial wave-function. So the equation (1-53) reduces to

$$\Psi(\mathbf{r}, t) = a_i(t)\phi_i(\mathbf{r}, t)exp(-ivz/2 - iv^2t/8 - id_it) + b_i(t)\phi_i(\mathbf{r}, t)exp(ivz/2 - iv^2t/8 - ib_it) (1-55)$$

where $Q_i(t)$ and $b_f(t)$ are the time-dependent coefficients in the initial and final states respectively. If we now set the initial condition $Q_i(-\infty) = 1$ and $b_f(-\infty) = 0$, then the scattering amplitude from the initial state i to the final state f for the excitation or charge exchange process can be given either by $|Q_i(+\infty)|^2$ or by $|b_f(+\infty)|^2$ which can easily be calculated by (1-55). Cross-section can be obtained after applying the formula (1-52). To get the coefficients a_i and b_f the following method has been $dsec_{inter}$.

Substituting (1-55) into (1-49) and multiply both sides firstly by $\phi_i^*(\underline{r},t) \exp(i\underline{\upsilon} z/2 + i\underline{\upsilon}^2 t/8 + i\underline{a}_i t)$ and secondly by $\phi_j^*(\underline{r},t) \exp(-i\underline{\upsilon} z/2 + i\underline{\upsilon}^2 t/8 + i\underline{\beta}_j t)$ and integrating overall the space, we get the following two sets of equation.

$$i(a; + b_f S_{if} exp(-iE_{fi}t)) = b_f k_{if} exp(iE_{fi}t) + a_ih_i i$$
and

(1-57)

$$i(b_f + a_i S_{f_i} e_p(-i\epsilon_{ift}) = a_i k_f i e_p(-i\epsilon_{ift}) + b_f h_{ff})$$

other, and where $\epsilon_{fi} = (\beta_f - \alpha_i)$. The matrix elements

Sif, S_{fi} , k_{if} , k_{fi} , h_{ii} , h_{ff} can be defined as

$$S_{if} = \int \phi_{i}^{*}(\mathbf{x}_{i}) \phi_{f}(\mathbf{x}_{i}) e^{i\boldsymbol{\varphi}_{z}} d\tau$$

$$S_{fi} = \left\{ \phi_{f}^{*}(\underline{r}_{1}) \phi_{i}(\underline{r}_{2}) e^{-i\vartheta Z} dr \right.$$

$$k_{fi} = \left\{ \phi_{f}^{*}(\underline{r}_{2}) V_{13} \phi_{i}(\underline{r}_{1}) e^{-i\vartheta Z} dr \right.$$

$$k_{if} = \left\{ \phi_{f}^{*}(\underline{r}_{2}) V_{13} \phi_{i}(\underline{r}_{1}) e^{-i\vartheta Z} dr \right.$$

$$h_{ii} = \left\{ \phi_{i}^{*}(\underline{r}_{1}) V_{12} \phi_{f}(\underline{r}_{2}) e^{-i\vartheta Z} dr \right.$$

$$h_{fi} = \left\{ \phi_{i}^{*}(\underline{r}_{1}) V_{12} \phi_{i}(\underline{r}_{2}) dr \right.$$

$$h_{ff} = \left\{ \phi_{f}^{*}(\underline{r}_{2}) V_{13} \phi_{f}(\underline{r}_{2}) dr \right.$$

From (1-56) and (1-57), after rearranging, we get

$$i(1 - |Si_f|^2)a_i = a_i(h_{ii} - Si_fk_{fi}) + b_f(K_{if} - Si_fh_{ff})e \qquad (1-58)$$

$$i(1 - |S_{if}|^2)b_f = Q_i(k_{ii} - S_{fi}h_{ii})e + b_f(h_{ff} - S_{fi}k_{if})$$
 (1-59)

Again substituting

$$X_i = \frac{h_{ii} - S_{ifkfi}}{1 - |S_{iff}|^2}$$

and

۰.

$$y_{f} = \frac{h_{ff} - S_{fi} k_{fi}}{1 - |S_{if}|^{2}}$$

and also putting

$$a_i = a_i \exp\left[-i \int_{\infty}^{t} X_i dt\right]$$

a nd

removes the secular terms of (1-58) and (1-59) giving

$$i a_{i} = b_{f} \left[\frac{k_{if} - S_{if}h_{ff}}{1 - 1S_{if}l^{2}} \right] e^{\left[-i(k_{f} - d_{i})t + iS_{if} \right]}$$
(1-60)

$$a_{i} = a_{i} \left[\frac{k_{fi} - S_{fi} h_{ii}}{1 - |S_{if}|^{2}} \right] e^{\left[-i(\alpha_{i} - \beta_{f}) - i\delta_{if} \right]}$$
(1-61)

where

$$\delta_{if} = \int_{\infty}^{t} (X_i - Y_f) dt$$

$$\simeq \int_{\infty}^{t} (h_{ii} - h_{ff}) dt$$

Taking the relevant solution of (1-60) to be ${}^{o}q_{i}(t) = 1$ which implies the neglecting of back-coupling from the final state f to the initial state i and inserting this condition in (1-61), we get

$$|b_f(+\infty)| = |^{\circ}b_f(+\infty)| = |\int_{-\infty}^{\infty} M_{if} dt|$$

where

$$Mi_{f} = \frac{k_{fi} - S_{fi}h_{ii}}{1 - 1Si_{f1}^{2}} exp\left[-i\left(\alpha_{i} - \beta_{f}\right) - i\delta_{if}\right]$$

$$\simeq \left(k_{fi} - S_{fi}h_{ii}\right)exp\left[-i\left(\alpha_{i} - \beta_{f}\right) - i\delta_{if}\right]$$

In the case of symmetrical resonance (Bates, 1958), we get

$$i^{\circ}a_{i} = M_{if}^{\circ}b_{f}$$

 $i^{\circ}b_{f} = M_{if}^{\circ}a_{i}$

where

$$M_{if} = \frac{k_{if} - S_{if}h_{ff}}{1 - |S_{if}|^2} = \frac{k_{fi} - S_{fi}h_{ii}}{1 - |S_{if}|^2}$$

where

$$a_i = \beta_f$$
, $\delta_{if} = \delta_{fi}$

which is a simple formula to be solved exactly and so allows completely for back - coupling from the final states to the initial states (McCarroll, 1961). The term δ_{if} is the difference between the effects of the interaction when in the initial state and when in the final state.

-27-

1.6 Many - state approximation.

To improve the accuracy of the results, calculations have also been done by taking more than two states for both Direct and Rearrangement collision - process. From equation (1-53) we have the trial function

$$\begin{aligned} (\underline{r}, t) &= \sum_{n}^{\infty} a_{n} (t) \phi_{n} (\underline{r}, t) e \\ & (i \forall z/2 - i \forall^{2} t/8 - i \phi_{q} t) \\ & + \sum_{m}^{\infty} b_{m} (t) \phi_{m} (\underline{r}, t) e \\ & + V(\underline{r}, t) \end{aligned}$$

This can be represented by the two-state approximation, where the initial and final state should be included and which we have shown in the previous section. But to get better accuracy we can add as many state we like if we are able to do computing. We shall talk about these methods in the section given below.

The Sturmian expansion.

Gallaher and Wilets (1968), have first introduced this approximation and applied this in the proton- hydrogen scattering problem. In the calculations they have expanded the electronic wave function in terms of travelling sturmian waves about each protonwith the Sturmian functions quantized about the interproton axis.

These basis states of the particle A is given by

where

 $\varphi_{k}\left(\underline{r}_{i}^{\prime}\right)=\left[S_{ne}\left(\underline{r}_{i}^{\prime}\right)/r_{i}^{\prime}\right]Y_{em}\left(\theta_{i}^{\prime},\varphi_{i}^{\prime}\right)$

Similarly we can define another wave-function with respect to the particle B.

and the Sturmian functions $S_k(\underline{r}) = S_{n\ell}(\underline{r})$ satisfy the equation,

$$\left(-\frac{1}{2}\frac{d^{2}}{dr^{2}}+\frac{l(l+1)}{2r^{2}}-\frac{\alpha_{K}}{r}\right)S_{K}(\underline{r})=E_{\ell}S_{K}(\underline{r})$$

The Sturmian function $\varsigma_k(\underline{r})$ has been first introduced by Rotenberg (1962), who choosed $E_{\underline{\ell}} = -\frac{1}{2}$, the ground state energy of the hydrogen atom. Gallaher and Wilets (1968) used $E_{\underline{\ell}} = -\frac{1}{2(\underline{\ell}+1)^2}$. The Sturmian function is similar to Schrödinger equation, but the energy $E_{\underline{\ell}}$ appears as a fixed parameter. It is the effective change of \prec_k which acts as an eigen value. The required boundary conditions of

 $S_k(\Upsilon)$ is zero at the origin and decay at infinity. $\varphi_k(\Upsilon)$ form an infinite, discrete and complete set of states. Unlike the hydrogenic function, there is no continuum. Their Sturmian functions are explicitly given by scaled hydrogen function, as $S_k(\Upsilon) = \alpha (\kappa^2 R_k (d_k \Upsilon))$

where $R_k(d_k \Upsilon)$ is the usual radial hydrogen function. The normalization is chosen such that $\langle \kappa | \kappa \rangle = 1$. In Rotenberg's sturmian set, only the 1S sturmian function coincides with the 1S hydrogenic function. But in the above case the Sturmian 1S, 2p 3d....etc. coincides with the corresponding hydrogen wave - function ϕ_k . The Sturmian states are more compact than the hydrogenic states. This can be seen by noting that $\langle \hat{\kappa} | \frac{1}{T} | \hat{\kappa} \rangle = \frac{1}{n^2}$.

The results obtained by using the method has been agreed with experimental result by Helbig and Everhart (1963) for 3° scattering angle.

-29-

The Pseudo - state approximation.

The Sturmian expansion has certain difficulties. Firstly it does not represent the states when internuclear separation is very large. Secondly, it does not satisfy the bound state except for the lowest value of ℓ . By Pseudo - state approximation, introduced by Cheshire et al (1970), the above difficulties have been removed. Cheshire et al (1970), have used the same Sturmian expansion for the hydrogenic 1S, 2S and 2p states but added some extra terms by

$$\phi_{\kappa}(\mathbf{r}) = \exp(-\lambda_{e}\mathbf{r}) \left[\sum_{j} \alpha_{j} \mathbf{r}^{j}\right] \mathcal{I}_{\ell,m}(\theta, \phi)$$

which is known as the orbital pseudo - state wave functions, where $y_{\ell,m}(\theta, \phi)$ are spherical harmonics, k and j are subscripts indicating the orbitals concerned, $i = l + i, j \ge i,$ $k = \xi_j + l + m + 2$ and where the radial functions is given by

$$S_{ij}(\underline{r}) = \exp(-\lambda_i \underline{r}) \sum_{q=1}^{j+3-1} S(i,j,q) r$$

the parameters have been chosen in this way that these functions are orthogonal to the 1S, 2S and 2p hydrogenic states and to each other. In this way, they have managed to get the correct boundary conditions for 1S, 2S and 2p states and added some omitted terms for the charge - exchange and excitation process as well.

-30-
CHAPTER 2

Second-order potential

In chapter 1, we discussed the most important approximations which have been applied to heavy particle scattering. In this chapter, we give a brief description of the second order potential, in the impact parameter formalism, first introduced by Bransden and Coleman (1972) which we have used for our calculations. In the many state approximation only a limited number of states can be included in the wave function To overcome this, a second-order potential matrix has been constructed where we try to account approximately for the infinite number of states and which can be evaluated in a closure approximation. The second-order potentials depend on a parameter which can be set so that the correct long range effective potential is obtained in the entrance channel and the method combines the characteristics of close - coupling and polarized orbital methods.

2.1 General formalism

Let the nucleus A be located at the fixed origin of the co-ordinate system and let the incident particle: B move with a constant velocity V along a line of distance ℓ and parallel to z - axis which satisfies the condition $R = \ell + Vt$, before collision, where ℓ is known as the impact parameter. Let the electronic wave - function $\Psi(\Upsilon, t)$ can be defined as

$$\Psi(\underline{r},t) = \sum_{n} a_{n}(t) \phi_{n}(\underline{r}) e \qquad (2-1)$$

where an(t) is the coefficient dependent on t.

The initial unperturbed eigenfunction $\phi_{\mu}(x,t)$ satisfies

$$H_{o}\phi_{n} = \epsilon_{n}\phi_{n} \qquad (2-2)$$

for the target nucleus, where H_0 is the Hamiltonian for the unperturbed atom and ϵ_n is the unperturbed energy. Now, substituting (2-1) into the time - dependent Schrödinger equation (1-49) and using (2-2) and multiplying_both sides by

 $\phi_n^*(\underline{r}) e^{i\epsilon_n t}$, we get a set of coupled equations given by

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial z} q_n(z) = \frac{1}{9} \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} q_m(z) V_{nm}(z) e \qquad (2-3)$$

where we have

$$Z = Ot$$
 (2-4)

and

$$(Em - En) = dmn$$

and V_{mn} can be expressed as

$$V_{nm} = \int \phi_n^*(r) V(r, t) \phi_m(r) dr \qquad (2-5)$$

which is known as the matrix interaction potential between the projectile and the target. Summation sign in (2-3) includes: the integration over the continuum states. The equation (2-3), thus obtained, is an exact form of the Schrodinger equation and forms the cases of the truncated eigenfunction expansion.

The scattering amplitude can now be obtained by setting the Boundary conditions as below,

where o denotes the incident channel. The probability amplitude $q_n(+\infty)$ is then evaluated by using the equation (2-3) and integrating that from $-\infty$ to $+\infty$. The scattering amplitude is obtained by integrating $|d_n(+\infty)|^2$ over all values of the impact parameters, given by

$$G = 2 \int_{0}^{\pi} f \left[4n \left(+\infty \right) \right]^{2} d\rho \pi d_{0}^{2} \qquad (2-6)$$

2.2 <u>Second-order potential</u>

In many problems it is expected that one or more states will be of particular importance in the expansion (2-1). For these states, labelled n = 0, 1, ... N, the corresponding equation (2-3) are retained without approximation, while for all states $n \ge N$, the equations (2-3) are modified so that only the potential terms coupling with states $n \le N$ are retained

$$i\frac{\partial}{\partial z} q_n(z) = \frac{1}{9} \sum_{m=0}^{N} q_m(z) \sqrt{n_m(z)} e$$
 (2-7)

Solution of (2-7) is $N = N+1, N+2, \dots$ $A_n = \frac{1}{19} \sum_{m=0}^{N} \int_{-\infty}^{Z/9} A_m(z') V_{nm}(z') e^{\frac{1}{(\alpha_{mn}z')/9}}$ N > N (2-8)

By substituting (2-8) into (2-3), we obtain the final set of coupled integro-differential equations which is in the impact parameter formalism and which is given by

$$i\frac{\partial}{\partial Z} q_{n} = \frac{1}{9} \sum_{m=0}^{N} q_{m}(z) V_{nm}(z) e^{id_{mn} z/9}$$

$$- \frac{1}{9^{2}} \sum_{m=0}^{N} \int_{-\infty}^{2/9} q_{m}(z') \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} V_{nj}(z) V_{jm}(z')$$

$$x e x p \left[i (\epsilon_{n} - \epsilon_{j}) z/9 + i (\epsilon_{j} - \epsilon_{m}) z/9 \right] dz'$$
for $n \leq N$ (2-9)

The equation (2-9) can also be written as

-33-

$$i \frac{\partial}{\partial z} q_{n} = \frac{1}{9} \sum_{m=0}^{N} q_{m}(z) V_{nm}(z) e$$

$$- \frac{1}{9^{2}} \int_{-\infty}^{\frac{2}{9}} q_{m}(z') K_{nm}(z,z') dz'$$

$$\gamma = 0, 1, 2, \dots N$$

where

$$\sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} V_{nj}(z) V_{jm}(z') e$$

$$K_{nm}(z, z') = \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} V_{nj}(z) V_{jm}(z') e$$

$$(2-11)$$

The potential K_{nm} can be evaluated by using the closure approximation in which ϵ_n , the energy of the excitation of the target in the state n , is replaced by an effective average excitation energy $\tilde{\epsilon}$. The closure relation

$$\sum_{n} \phi_{n}(\underline{r}) \phi_{n}^{*}(\underline{r}) = \delta(\underline{r} - \underline{r}') \qquad (2-12)$$

can now be used to write ${\tt K}_{\tt nm}$ in the form

$$i[(\epsilon_n - \overline{\epsilon})^2/\upsilon + (\overline{\epsilon} - \epsilon_m)^2/\upsilon]$$
Knm (z,z') = e
$$\begin{bmatrix}V_{nm}(z,z') - \sum_{j=0}^{N} V_{nj}(z) & V_{jm}(z') \\ (2-13) & (2-13) \end{bmatrix}$$

where $j \ge N+1$ where the potential $V_{nm}(Z, Z')$ can be defined as

$$V_{nm}(z,z') = \int \phi_n^*(r) V(r,z) V(r,z') \phi_m(r) dr \quad (2-14)$$

and can be expressed in a suitable form for the numerical calculation by using the technique given by Coleman (1970), described below in chapter 4.

The equation (2-13) can also be solved by substituting $\overline{\epsilon}'$ for j > M where M = N + 1 and the exact energies of all lower levels are used, where $\overline{\epsilon}'$ is an new effective energy. The amplitude for excitation to the state n, for n 7 N, is obtained by solving a modified version of the equation (2-3) which allows for 'distortion' in the final state, ie.

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial z} a_{n} = \frac{1}{2} \sum_{m=0}^{N} a_{m}(z) \sqrt{m(z)} e^{i d_{mn} z/2} + a_{n} \sqrt{m(z)}$$
(2-15)

The solution of (2-10) and (2-15) is dependent on the boundary conditions given above.

The effective energy E 2.3

In paper I (Bransden and Coleman, 1972) the effective energy $\overline{\epsilon}$ has been introduced to obtain the correct long range potential due to dipole polarizability. Also we know that should be fixed so that in adiabatic limit of the incident channel asymptotic behaviour can be obtained.

Using the adiabatic limit $\forall \rightarrow \circ$, the term containing the kernel on the right hand side of equation (2-10) then reduces to

$$I = \int_{-\infty}^{z} dz' K_{nm}(z, z') 4_{n}(z')$$
 (2-16)

$$= \int_{-\infty}^{z} k_{o,v}(z, z') 4_{o}(z') dz' \qquad n = m = 0 \qquad (2-17)$$

$$= \left[W(z, z') 4_{o}(z') \right]_{-\infty}^{2} - \int_{-\infty}^{2} dz' W(z, z') \frac{\partial 4}{\partial z}$$
(2-18)

where $W(z_1, z') = \int K_{00}(z_1, z') dz'$ and $K_{00}(z_1, z') = \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} V_{0j}(z) V_{j0}(z') e$ (2-19)

 $K_n = \frac{(\epsilon_j - \epsilon_o)}{19}$ where

Velocity independent term is $\left[W(z,z')\right]^{z}$

$$W(z, z') = \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} e^{-i\bar{k}_{n} z} V_{0j}(z) \int e^{i\bar{k}_{n} z'} V_{j0}(z') dz'$$
(2-20)

::

$$= \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} V_{oj}(z) e^{-i\overline{k_n} z} \left\{ \frac{1}{i\overline{k_n}} e^{-i\overline{k_n} z'} V_{jo}(z') - \left(\frac{dz'}{i\overline{k_n}} e^{-\frac{\partial}{\partial z}} V_{jo}(z') \right\} \right\}$$
(2-21)

Therefore

$$\left[W(z_{1}z_{1}) \right]_{-\infty}^{Z} \sim \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} \frac{V_{o_{j}}(z) V_{jo}(z)}{i \bar{K}_{n}}$$
(2-22)

$$\sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} \frac{|V_{0j}(2)|^2}{i(\epsilon_0 - \epsilon_j)}$$
(2-23)

Therefore I can be written as

$$\mathbf{I} = \int_{-\infty}^{2} K_{oo}(z, z') A_{o}(z') = \sqrt{\frac{p}{o_{o}}} A_{o}(z) \qquad (2-24)$$

where

$$V_{ov}^{P} = \sum_{j=n+1}^{\infty} \frac{|V_{oj}(z)|}{(\epsilon - \epsilon_{j})}$$
 (2-25)

The adiabatic second-order potential is given by V^{pol} . Therefore, in the incident channel, the charged potential V_{00}^{p} is $V_{01}^{\text{p}} \left[V_{01} \left(2 \right) \right]^2$

$$V_{00} = V_{(z)} - \sum_{j=1}^{p_{0L}} \frac{|V_{0j}(z)|}{(\epsilon_{0} - \epsilon_{j})}$$
(2-26)

for N = 0, by castillejo et al (1960),

$$\sqrt{\frac{1}{2}} = -\frac{\alpha'}{2z^4}$$
 (2-27)

where \triangleleft is the dipole polarizability. But in the closure approximation, we get

$$V_{00}^{P}(z) = \sum_{j=N+1}^{\infty} \frac{|V_{0j}(z)|^{2}}{(\epsilon_{0} - \overline{\epsilon})}$$
(2-28)

for N = 0,

$$V_{00}^{P}(z) = -\frac{1}{3}/2(e_{0}-\overline{e})z^{4}$$
 (2-29)

where β is easily evaluated. Thus $\overline{\epsilon}$ can be given by

$$\vec{\epsilon} = (\epsilon_0 + \beta/\alpha) \tag{2-30}$$

which gives the correct asymptotic form in the adiabic limit in the entrance channel when $N \neq 0$, a similar procedure can be followed if the contribution to the dipole polarizability arising from those p states occurring explicitly in the coupled equations is taken into account.

CHAPTER 3

3. Earlier work on excitation

3.1 The Born approximation

From chapter 1, we know that the cross-section from the initial state i to the final state f is given by

$$Q_{if} = \frac{\mu_{i}^{2}}{2\pi} \frac{k_{f}}{k_{i}} |T_{fi}|^{2} d \pi$$
(3-1)

where μ is the reduced mass, K_i and K_f are the initial and final momenta and T_{fi} has been defined as

$$T_{fi} = \langle \phi_{f} | v_{i} | \psi_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle$$

$$= \langle \psi_{f}^{\dagger} | v_{i} | \phi_{i} \rangle$$
(3-2)

Since for the Direct collision $V_i = V_f$, and $\phi_i = e^{-\chi_i(\underline{K}_i)}$

and

$$\phi_{f} = e^{i \kappa_{f} \cdot \frac{T}{T}} \chi_{f}(R_{1})$$

The equation (3-2) is known as the Born approximation, which is very difficult to solve if we use the exact expressions of ψ_i^+ or ψ_i^- . To make the calculation a bit easier Bethe (1930) has expressed (3-2) in a simple form which is known as Bethe approximation, which is given by

$$T(\underline{Y}_{j}) = \frac{4\pi}{P^{2}} \int e^{i\underline{P}\cdot\underline{Y}_{j}} \mathcal{X}_{j}(\underline{R}_{l}) \mathcal{X}_{j}^{*}(\underline{R}_{l}) dR_{l}$$
(3-3)

The formula (3-3) has first been used by Bates and Griffling (1953) to calculate the cross-section of the following process $H^+ + H(1S) \longrightarrow H^+$ or H(1S) + H(2S, 2p, 3S, 3p, 3d, c) where c means the continuum states. The same authors (1954) also calculated the cross-section for the following process as well.

 $H(1S) + H(1S) \longrightarrow H(2S \text{ or } 2p) + H(2S, 2p, 3S, 3p, 3d, c)$ Pomilla and Milford (1966) have also done the calculations keeping the projectile and the target initially in the excited states for hydrogen atom. The experimental results for hydrogen are too low to be valid, because Born approximation can give good results only for higher energies. The theoretical work on proton-helium scattering on excitation has previously been done by Moiseiwitsch and Stewart (1954), Bell (1961), Bell and Skinner (1962). Similarly the experimental works are available by Thomas and Bent (1967), Galliard (1966), Gabriel and Heddle (1960). Most recent and valuable work on First Born approximation on proton - helium collision has been done by Bell et al (1968c) who have obtained the generalized oscillator strengths for excitation of the ground state of helium using many parameter wave - functions. These are employed to obtain proper impact excitation crosssections in the ? First Born approximation for the excitation from the ground state of atomic helium to $n^{1}s = 2$ to 7), $(n^{1}p = 2 \text{ to } 4)$ and $3^{1}D$ excited states and for the elastic Their results have been compared with scattering of protons. the experimental results available by Van Den Bos (1968b), The results of Van Den Bos (1968b) are Denis et al (1967). smaller than their results. The results of Bell et al (1968c) for 2^{1} s and 2^{1} p excitations of proton from helium has been predicted in table 2 and 3 respectively.

-38-

The Second Born approximation. 3.2

From chapter 1, we know that the Second Born approximation can be given by

$$T_{5i}^{B^2} = T_{5i}^{B^1} + \langle \phi_5 | V_5 G_i^{\dagger} V_i | \phi_i \rangle$$
 (3-4)

where $T_{r_i}^{B1}$ is the First Born approximation and the second term of the above series is given by

$$T_{g_{i}}^{B2'} = 2 \sum_{n} \left\{ \int e^{-ik_{f} \cdot \underline{r}_{i}} V_{f_{n}}(\underline{r}_{i}) e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} V_{n_{i}} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i} - \underline{r}_{i}'|} e^{-ik_{n} |\underline{r}_{i}$$

whe

Where the sum over n is over all the states of the target atom including continuum states.

As it is very difficult to calculate all the terms in the equation (3-5), Massey and Mohr (1934) have ignored the variation of K_n in the calculations on proton - hydrogen scattering. Instead of Kn they used Ki and evaluated the equations (3-5) with the help of closure approximation. But Kingston et al (1960) have solved it in a different way. In their case, they have taken all the 1S, 2S, 2p states and neglected the other terms. They also carried out the calculations on the proton - hydrogen collision problem. Their results are larger than the results obtained by First But when only 2S and 2p were retained, Born approximation. results are quite near to the distortion approximation. Similar calculations have also been done by Moisewtsch and Perrin (1965). Holt and Moisewitsch (1968) have done this calculation by taking both approaches given by Massey and Mohr (1934) and Kingston et al (1960). Holt et al (1971) also have applied the same method when they have calculated the

excitation of helium to the 2¹S and 2¹p states by electron and proton impact and results are available in table 2 and 3 respectively. Recently Wooling and McDowell (1972) have done some calculations on the excitation of electron from helium by applying various forms of the Second Born approximation.

3.3 <u>Eigenfunction expansion method.</u>

From chapter 2, we have

$$i d_n(z) = \frac{1}{9} \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} a_m(z) V_{nm}(z) e$$

(3-6)

where V_{nm} is the interaction potential and is defined as

$$\overline{V}_{nm} = \int \phi_n^*(\underline{r}) \vee (\underline{r}, z) \phi_m(\underline{r}) dr$$

The equation (3-6) is equivalent to First Born approximation and is known as the Impact parameter First Born approximation or in short I.P.B. approximation. The cross - sections obtained by the application of this model are available in the papers written by Bates (1959), Bell (1961) and Bell and Skinner (1962), McDowell and Plutta (1966). Results of this approximation are very poor below 100 Kev. Modification of I.P.B. method has been suggested by Bates (1959) and Mittleman (1961) which has been initially applied by Bates (1959).

Skinner (1962) and Bell and Skinner (1962) examined the transition

 $H^+ + H(1S) \longrightarrow H^+ + H(2p)$

where they have obtained the coupling between the degenerate final sub-states $2B_0$, $2P_{i+1}$, and of direct coupling of these to the initial state, but not allowing the coupling for back - coupling or coupling to 2S. The resulting coupled first - order linear differential equation must be solved numerically. Their equation was of the form given below

$$i \forall \dot{a_0} = 4_0 \vee_{00}$$

$$i \forall \dot{a_1} = 4_0 \vee_{10} \dot{e}^{i\beta z} + a_1 \vee_{11} + a_2 \vee_{12}$$

$$i \forall \dot{a_2} = 4_0 \vee_{20} \dot{e}^{i\beta z} + a_1 \vee_{21} + a_2 \vee_{22}$$

where the coefficients a_{K} refers to the ground - state if K = 0, the $2p_{0}$ state if K = 1, and the $2p_{+1}$ state if K = 2, β is W_{01}/\mathcal{G} , $W_{01} = W_{02}$

Also to solve the equation (3-6), a special class of perturbation method has first been introduced by Callaway and Bauer(1965) which has been applied on proton - hydrogen scattering process by Callaway and Dugan (1966). By this method they have calculated the 2S and 2p levels of hydrogen atom by slow protons (E \angle 50 Kev) where they have neglected exchange and included $1S_{2}S_{2}P_{0}, 2p_{+1}$ states explicitly. Their results are three or more times larger than the experimental results given by Stebbings et al (1965), Gailly (1968). But their results for the 2p states has been agreed with Bell and Skinner (1962).

Most recent work on I.P.B. approximation has been given by Flannery (1970). The cross-sections are obtained for both the 2^{1} S and 2^{1} p excitation of helium by proton and electron impact and are shown in table 3 and 4 respectively.

-42-

-43-Chapter 4

Present calculation on excitation

<u>Introduction</u>: In this chapter we calculate the cross section for the elastic scattering and the 2¹S and 2¹p excitations of helium atom by proton impact keeping the helium atom initially in their ground state. The calculations hwereboperformedy using the truncated eigenfunction expansion method, in the impact parameter formalism, introduced by Bransden and Coleman, 1972, which has successfully been used by Bransden et al (1972) and Sullivan et al (1972) to the scattering of electrons and protons from hydrogen atom. Recently, a paper has also been published on the electron helium scattering by Berrington et al (1972).



1

Let p be the proton incident on the nucleus 0 which is fixed and has been taken as an origin. Let \mathbb{R} , r_1 , r_2 , r_{12} , \mathbb{R}_1 , \mathbb{R}_2 be the position vectors between the proton p and the nucleus 0, the nucleus 0 and the electron 1, the nucleus 0 and the electron 2, the electron 1 and the electron 2, the proton p and the electron 1, the proton p and the electron 2 respectively. Let V be the velocity along the direction of z - axis so that before collision, we have $\mathbb{R} = b + 9t$, where u.b = 0 and b is the perpendicular distance between p and the z axis which is known as the impact parameter.

Total Hamiltonian is given by

 $H = -\frac{1}{2} \nabla_{1}^{2} - \frac{1}{2} \nabla_{2}^{2} + V_{01} + V_{02} + V_{12} + V_{P1} + V_{P2} + V_{0P}$ where we can define V_{01} , V_{02} , V_{12} , V_{P1} , V_{P2} , V_{0P} by the help of coulomb potentials. So H can be written as

$$H = -\frac{1}{2} \nabla_{1}^{2} - \frac{1}{2} \nabla_{2}^{2} - \frac{2}{\gamma_{1}} - \frac{2}{\gamma_{2}^{2}} - \frac{1}{R_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}} + \frac{2}{R} + \frac{1}{r_{12}^{2}}$$
(4-1)

The electronic wave - function $\psi(\underline{r}_1,\underline{r}_2,t)$ can be given by

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_1, \underline{r}_2, t) = \sum_n a_n(t) \phi_n(\underline{r}_1, \underline{r}_2) e \qquad (4-2)$$

 $\phi_n(\mathbf{n}, \mathbf{n})$ is known as the unperturbed helium wave function which satisfies the condition

$$Heta(\underline{r},\underline{r}) = \epsilon_n t_n(\underline{r},\underline{r}_2) \qquad (4-3)$$

where ϵ_n and H_e represents the unperturbed eigen energy and the unperturbed hamiltonian for the helium atom in their ground state respectively.

Now, substituting (4-3) into the time - dependent Schrödiger equation (1-49) and following the procedure given in chapter

2, we get a set of coupled equations given below

$$i \frac{\partial q_{n}}{\partial z} = \frac{1}{\vartheta} \sum_{m=0}^{N} V_{nm}(z) q_{m}(z) e$$

$$- \frac{i}{\vartheta^{2}} \int_{m=0}^{Z/\vartheta} \frac{Z/\vartheta}{M + 2} K_{hm}(z, z') q_{n}(z') \qquad (4-4)$$

where V_{nm} and K_{nm} have been expressed in the same way as in chapter 2.

If we use N = 0 in equation (4-4), we get the one - channel equation only, which is given by

$$i \frac{\partial q_{o}}{\partial z} = \frac{1}{9} V_{oo} q_{o}(z)$$

$$- \frac{i}{9^{2}} \int_{-\infty}^{2/9} dz' k_{oo} (z, z') q_{o}(z') \qquad (4-5)$$

For our present calculation we have included the back couplings from $2^{1}S$ and $2^{1}p$ inelastic channel to the ground state for the elastic amplitude which is given by

$$i\frac{\partial}{\partial z} q_{o} = \frac{1}{6} \sum_{m=0,N} V_{om}(z) \exp\{i(t_{o} - \epsilon_{m})z/0\} q_{o}(z)$$

$$-\frac{i}{6} \int_{-\infty}^{z/0} dz' k_{oo}(z,z') q_{o}(z')$$
(4-6)

where N = 3. where $K_{00}(Z_1Z')$ can be expressed by following the equation (2-12) given in chapter 2, where now, we are using n = m = 0There form

$$i(\bar{e}-e_{0})(z-z')/0$$

$$K_{00}(z,z') = e \qquad \left[V_{00}(z,z') - V_{00}(z)V_{00}(z')\right]$$

$$(4-7)$$

 $V_{00}(z)$ and $V_{00}(z')$ can be defined as in chapter 2, and we can express $\sqrt{oo}(z,z')$ as below

$$V_{00}(z,z') = \int dr_{1} \int dr_{2} \Psi_{0}^{*}(\underline{x},\underline{x}) \left(\frac{2}{R} - \frac{1}{R_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}}\right) \left(\frac{2}{R} - \frac{1}{R_{1}'} - \frac{1}{R_{2}'}\right) \Psi_{0}(\underline{x}_{1},\underline{x}_{2})$$

$$(4-8)$$

where R = b + z, $R^{2} = b + z^{4}$ and $z = \Im t$, $z^2 = \Im t^2$.

The equation (4-8) can now be expressed as

$$V_{00}(Z_{1}Z') = \mathcal{L}I_{R_{1}R_{1}'} + \mathcal{L}I_{R_{1}R_{2}'} + \frac{4}{RR'}I_{1}I_{2} - \frac{4}{R'}I_{R_{1}} - \frac{4}{R'}I_{R_{1}'}$$

where

$$\begin{split} I_{R_{1}R_{1}'} &= \left\{ dr_{1}' \mid u(\underline{r}_{1}) \right|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{1} - \underline{R}_{1}'|} \left\{ dr_{2}' \mid u(\underline{r}_{2}') \right|^{2} \\ & (4-9) \end{split} \\ I_{R_{1}R_{2}'} &= \left\{ dr_{1}' \mid u(\underline{r}_{1}') \right|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{1}' - R|} \left\{ dr_{2}' \mid u(\underline{r}_{2}') \right|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{2}' - R'|} \\ & (4-10) \end{split}$$

$$I_{1}I_{2} = \left\{ dr_{1} | \mathcal{U}(\underline{r}) \right\}^{2} \left\{ dr_{2} | \mathcal{U}(\underline{r}) \right\}^{2}$$

$$(4-11)$$

$$I_{R_{1}} = \left(dr_{1} | u(r_{1}) | \frac{1}{|r_{1}-R|} \int dr_{2} | u(r_{2}) |^{2} \right)$$
(4-12)

$$I_{R'_{1}} = \int dr_{1} |u(\underline{r}_{1})|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{1} - R'|} \int dr_{2} |u(\underline{r}_{2})|^{2} \qquad (4-13)$$

In the above equation we have used $\forall (\underline{r}_1, \underline{r}_2) = U(\underline{r}_1) U(\underline{r}_2)$ Also we know that

$$\left\{ dr_{1} | u(\underline{r}_{1})|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{1}^{2} - \underline{R}| |\underline{r}_{1}^{2} - \underline{R}'|} = \left\{ dr_{2} | u(\underline{r}_{2})|^{2} \frac{1}{|\underline{r}_{2}^{2} - \underline{R}| |\underline{r}_{2}^{2} - \underline{R}'|} \right.$$

$$\left\{ dr_{1} | u(\underline{r}_{1})|^{2} = \left\{ dr_{2} | u(\underline{r}_{2})|^{2} \right\}^{2} \right\}$$

$$\left\{ dr_{1} \frac{| u(\underline{r}_{1})|^{2}}{|\underline{r}_{1}^{2} - \underline{R}|} = \left\{ dr_{2} \frac{1}{| u(\underline{r}_{2})|^{2}} \right\}^{2} \right\}$$

ənd

From the above equations, the equation (4-10) is very difficult to evaluate. But that has been done by employing the numerical technique given by Coleman (1970) which will be presented in Appendix C.

The inelastic amplitude has similarly been considered by taking all the direct couplings between the four channels $(1^{1}S, 2^{1}S)$ and the two independent magnetic sub - states of $2^{1}p$, which is now

$$i\frac{\partial}{\partial z} Q_n(z) = \frac{1}{6} \sum_{m=0,N} V_{nm}(z) e \qquad Q_m(z) \qquad (4-14)$$

$$n \neq 0$$

and N = 3.

Total cross-section has been calculated by employing the formula

$$Q_{(15,n)} = 2 \int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{K_{n}}{K_{0}} |q_{n}(+\infty)|^{2} b db \pi q_{0}^{2}$$
(4-15)

Flannery (1970) has solved the equation (4-44) for both elastic and inelastic cases for proton - helium collisions.

4.1 <u>Calculations</u>

For the 1^{1} S, 2^{1} S and 2^{1} p states the following Hartree - Fock function have been used and defined as in Flannery (1970)

$$\Psi_{1s}(\underline{Y}_{1},\underline{Y}_{2}) = \frac{1\cdot 69\,66}{\pi T} \left\{ exp(-1\cdot 4Y_{1}) + 0.799 \times exp(-2.6|Y_{1}) \right\}$$

$$\times \left\{ exp(-1\cdot 4Y_{2}) + 0.799 \times exp(-2\cdot 6|Y_{2}) \right\} (4=16)$$

$$\Psi_{25}(\underline{1}^{n},\underline{1}^{n}) = \frac{N}{(1+\Delta^{2})^{n}} \left[exp(-2\underline{1}^{n}) \left\{ exp(-\lambda \underline{1}^{n}) - (c\underline{1}^{n}) \times exp(-\underline{1}^{n}\underline{1}^{n}) \right\} + exp(-2\underline{1}^{n}) \left\{ exp(-\lambda \underline{1}^{n}) - c\underline{1}^{n} \times exp(-\underline{1}^{n}\underline{1}^{n}) \right\} \right]$$

$$(4-17)$$

$$\begin{aligned} \Psi_{2p}(\underline{Y}_{1}^{r},\underline{Y}_{2}^{r}) &= \frac{0.3783}{\sqrt{\pi}} \left[Y_{1}^{r} \exp \left\{ -(0.485 \, Y_{1}^{r} + 2 \, Y_{2}^{r}) \, y_{1,m}(Y_{1}^{r}) \right\} \\ &+ Y_{2}^{r} \exp \left\{ -(0.485 \, Y_{2}^{r} + 2 \, Y_{1}^{r}) \, y_{1,m}(Y_{2}^{r}) \right\} \right] \end{aligned}$$

$$(4-18)$$

respectively. The equations (4-16), (4-17) and (4-18) was first introduced by Byron and Joachain (1966), Goldberg and Clogston (1939) and Cohen and McEachran (1967) respectively. The unknown values in the equation (4-17) is given by $\lambda = 1.1946$, $\mu = 0.4733$, N = 0.70640, $\Delta = 0.007322$ and C = 0.26832.

To solve equation (4-6) and (4-14) we applied the integro differential equation for numerical calculations by ϵ Hamming's method. Then, we have used Simpson's rule to integrate over the impact parameter b, to get the total cross - sections from equation (4-15). The measurement of Martin (1960) being used for the 2¹S and 2¹p excitation energies (0.7577 and 0.7799 a.u.). The values of the effective energy has been considered as below.

4.2 The average excited energy.

From chapter 2, we know that the average excitation energy is $-\frac{d}{2\sqrt{1}}$ and is very important for the long - range potential due to dipole polarizability-of-a-neutral atom in the scattering process. From paper II and IV, we know that the effective energy can be replaced either by all the levels above the ground state which is equal to 1.14 or we can use the exact 2^{1} S and 2^{1} p energies and average the remaining energies which is equal to 1.34. In this calculation we have used the value of energy as 1.34.

Also from paper II and IV we notice that the variation of the effective energy has very little effects on the elastic cross-section in the one - channel approximation of equation (4-6) given above.

4.3 Elastic scattering of protons

Equations (4-6) and (4-14) have been solved with the full static coupling between 1¹S, 2¹S and 2¹p states where we have used the second - order term in the elastic channel. Total cross - section for the elastic channel has been calculated by using the formula (4-15). In table 1 our predictions for elastic scattering are shown, no experimental data or other calculated results are available for comparison.

4.4 The 21S excitation of helium by protons.

The total cross-section, evaluated with the full static coupling between the $1^{1}S$, $2^{1}S$ and $2^{1}p$ states and the 2nd order term in the elastic channel, are shown in table 2 for the 2¹S excitations. These are compared with the First Born cross - sections (Bl) of Bell et al (1968). The Second Born approximation (SB2) of Holt et al (1971), the results of a four - channel approximation of Flannery (1970). As there are no experimental data available we could not compare our results with any experimental result. Though we have included the 2nd order term yet our results are below Flannery (1970). But the present results are a little larger energies than the values of First Born and 2nd Born approximation at high Figure (1) shows the effects of various approximation on the total cross - sections.

4.5 The 2¹p excitation of helium by protons.

Table 3 shows the results with full static coupling between the 1^{1} S, 2^{1} S, 2^{1} p states and the second - order term in the elastic channel. This is compared with the results using the four - channel approximation of Flannery (1970), the First Born approximation (B1) of Bell et al (1968), the second Born approximation (SB2) of Holt et al (1971). Here, also no experimental results are available. Figure (2) shows the effects of various approximation on the total cross sections.

CHAPTER 5

-51-

Earlier work on charge - exchange.

5.1 <u>Classical approximation</u>

The first calculation on the capture process H^+ + H(1S) \longrightarrow H(1S) + H⁺ was made by Thomas (1927). In his calculations he considered the above process as a two - body collision where the collision can occur firstly between the electron and the incident ion and secondly between the electron and the nucleus of the target. He found that the cross - section behaves like v^{-11} when the velocity V is very high. Drisko (1955) and Bransden and Cheshire (1963) have also obtained the same results for their calculations on the 2nd Born approximation and the Impulse approximation respectively. But Cook (1963) has shown by the uncertainty Principle that the Thomas model can not be in a high - energy limit. Using Monte Carlo's method Abrines and Percival (1964) have solved the Newtonians equations of three - body motion for two protons and an electron and have hence obtained the cross - section for capture H⁺ - H(1S) collisions at a few impact energies. The modification of Thomas model was made by Bates and Mapleton (1965) where they found that predictions of the modified theory are in good accord with the experimental data. They also developed a simple classical theory for the symmetrical resonance capture in slow encounters.

5.2 The First Born approximation

From chapter 1, we know that the First Born approximation is given by

$$\int_{\mathbf{f}_{1}} = \langle \phi_{\mathbf{f}} | V_{\mathbf{f}} | \phi_{i} \rangle \qquad (5-1)$$

where ϕ_{f} and ϕ_{f} are the initial and final wave functions, and V_{f} is the interaction, which we can express by the help of Coulomb potential.

Brinkman and Kramers (1930) and Oppenheimer (1928) have attempted to solve the equation (5-1) to get the cross sections for the process $H^+ + H(1S) \rightarrow H(1S) + H^+$. But in their calculations they have considered only the electron incident interaction and ignored the nuclear - nuclear interaction, as they have concluded that internuclear potential has very little contribution to charge - exchange cross - sections, which is arising for the non-orthogonality of $\phi_i(\underline{r})$ and

 $\phi_{\mathfrak{F}}(\mathfrak{F})$ • The calculated cross - section in the ground state capture has been given in units of $\pi q_{\mathfrak{F}}^2$ and is

$$Q_{0BK} = 2^8 / 5(1 + v^2 / 4) v^2$$

where V is the velocity of the incident proton in atomic units that the incident energy $E = 24.97V^2$ Kev. But in the high energy limit the ground - state cross - sections behaves like

$$Q_{OBK} = 2^{18}/5 \sqrt{12}$$

and the capture into the n'th level has been found as

$$Q_{OBK} = Q_{OBK} (1S)/n^3$$

From this, Oppenheimer (1928) suggested that the capture cross - section into the n'th level is proportional to $1/n^3$. Their calculation approximately is four times higher than the

-52-

existing experimental results and still higher at lower energies. They calculated only the ground - state electron - capture cross - section and their procedure has since been followed by Saha and Basu (1945) and Takayyangi (1952). The cross - section for the excited states and many electron - systems has been calculated by Bates and McCarroll (1962), Omidvar (1967), Mapleton (1963, 1965, 1966, 1968), Nikolaev (1967).

But Bates and Dalgarno (1952) concluded that the internuclear potential should not be so small and negligible and so in their calculations they first included this term and carried out their calculations for the same process which we have mentioned above. **Corinaldesiand** Trainer (1952) and Jackson and Schiff (1954) also did the same calculations by using the Fouriers transform of Feynmann (1949).

The first calculations for the process

 $H^{+} + He(1s^{2}) \rightarrow He^{+}(1s) + H(1s)$ (5-2)

have been done by Bransden, Dalgarno and King (1954) where they have obtained the simple ground - state helium wave function

$$\Psi(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2}) = \frac{\lambda^{3}}{\pi} \exp[-\lambda(r_{1}+r_{2})]$$
 (5-3)

where $\lambda = 1.6875$ They calculated both $Q_{05K}(1S^2/1S, 1S)$ and $Q_{B}(1S^2/1S, 1S)$ and they have found that the cross - section G_{06K} is larger than Q_{B} which agrees better with the experimental $(g_{iven in page 52})$ results. Here G_{06K} means the Brinkman Kramer's cross section and Q_{B} is the Born cross - section. Detailed calculations for the above process (5-2) has been carried out by Mapleton (1961) who also obtained the same helium wave function (5-3), where he calculated both the post and prior cross - sections for the cases (1S, 1S),(1S, 2p), (2S, 1S), (2S, 2p), (2p, 2S),(3S, 1S).

His results are 2.5 times greater than Bransden, Dalgarno and King (1954). But the mean value of his post and prior cross - sections have been compared with the existing experimental results done by Steir and Barnett (1956), Barnett and Reynolds (1958), Allision (1958) and the agreement between Mapleton (1963), again, has done some them is quite close. calculations for the above - mentioned process (5-2) using the six - parameter helium wave function by Hyllerass and has also calculated the cross - section for the post and prior form wave function of helium. The calculated cross - sections have been improved by using more accurate wave - function from which we can conclude that for the large impact parameters we should use accurate wave function which can give the correct result for the high energies.

-54-

5.3 The Second - Born approximation

On the Second Born approximation, only Drisko (1955)'s work is available where he applied this method to calculate the cross - section for the proton - hydrogen cases. We know, from chapter 1, the Second Born approximation, is given by

$$T_{f_{1}}^{-B2} = \langle \phi_{f} | V_{f} | \phi_{i} \rangle + \langle \phi_{f} | V_{f} G^{\dagger} \vee (| \phi_{i} \rangle)$$

$$= T_{f_{1}}^{B} + \langle \phi_{f} | V_{f} G^{\dagger} \vee (| \phi_{i} \rangle) \qquad (5-4)$$

In equation (5-4) Drisko used free Green's function G_{10} which is now

$$T_{fi'} = T_{fi'} + \angle \phi_f | V_f G_o^+ V_i | \phi_i 7$$
 (5-5)

The equation (5-5) can be written as

$$T_{f_1}^{B^2} = T_{f_1}^B + I(V_1, V_2) + I(V_2, V_2) + I(V_2, V_3) + I(V_1, V_3)$$

= $T_{f_1}^B + I(V_3, V)$ (5-6)

and Go can be defined with the help of configuration space,

$$G_{0}(\underline{r}_{3},\underline{R}_{3},\underline{r}_{3}',\underline{R}_{3}') = (2\pi)^{6} \int dq_{3} \int dp_{3} \frac{\exp\left[i\left\{\underline{q}_{3},(\underline{r}_{3},\underline{r}_{3}')+\underline{P}_{3},(\underline{R}_{3},\underline{R}_{3}')\right\}\right]}{\left[\frac{k_{f}^{2}}{2\mu_{3}}+E_{B}+i\epsilon-Eq_{3}-Ep_{3}\right]}$$

 ${\bf E}_{\rm B}$ is the kinetic energy of hydrogen in the ground state 1S and ${\bf p}_{\rm i}$ and ${\bf q}_{\rm i}$ are the momenta, ${\cal M}_{\rm i}$ and ${\bf M}_{\rm i}$ are the reduced masses defined as

$$\mu_{1} = \frac{m_{1} (m_{2} + m_{3})}{m_{1} + m_{2} + m_{3}}$$

and

$$M_{1}^{*} = \frac{m_{2}m_{3}}{(m_{2}+m_{3})}$$

From Drisko, the second part of the equation (5-6) can be given by

$$4(2\pi)^{-4} \int dq \int dk \left[-\frac{k^2}{2A_3} + E_B + \left(B + \frac{1+M}{M} \alpha \right) \cdot k - \frac{1+M}{2M} q^2 \right]^{-2} I(q,k)$$

where I($q_{,k}$) has been represented by the 2nd part by (5-6).

The calculations of $I(V_1, V_2)$ etc. are available in the book written by McDowell & Coleman (1970) and also in the paper written by Bransden (1965).

Drisko neglected the term containing 1/M and found that B $T_{ff} + I(V_2, V_2) + I(V_2, V_3) = 0$

for the high energy cases. He also neglected the internuclear potential. So he was left only with the two equation , which was

$$T_{f_i}^{B^2} = T_{f_i}^{Bk} + I(V_1, V_3)$$
 (5-7)

The required cross - section of (5-7) now has been given by $Q^{B2} \sim (0.2996 + 5\pi V/2^{12}) Q_{BK}$

which is having the same V^{-11} dependence as Thomas (1927) had in his result. Drisko (1955) also added the 3rd term of the Born approximation given in chapter 1 and obtained the result

$$Q^{B3} \sim (0.319 + 5\pi \sqrt{2^{12}}) Q_{BK}$$

which has also contained the same independence as before.

as

5.4 The Distorted wave approximation.

Bassel and Gerjuoy (1960) first attempted to calculate the cross - section for proton - hydrogen charge - exchange process where he adopted the distorted wave method. We know, that the exact transition for the above process from the initial state i to the final state f can be given by

$$T_{4i} = 2 \psi_{i} | v_{i} - w_{i} | x_{i}^{\dagger} \rangle$$
 (5-8)

The equation (5-8) can be altered for the distorted wave method which is given by

$$\int_{f_{1}}^{DWD} = \langle 3_{f}^{-} | V_{i} - W_{f} | x_{i}^{+} \rangle$$
 (5-9)

and which is known as the first - order distorted wave approximation.

In their calculations Bassel and Gerjuoy (1960) defined U_i and U_f as

$$u_{i} = \left\{ d\underline{r} \mid P_{i}(\underline{r}) \mid V_{i}(\underline{r}, f) \right\}$$
$$u_{\xi} = \left\{ d\underline{r} \mid P_{\xi}(\underline{r}) \mid V_{\xi}(\underline{r}, f) \right\}$$

which they have integrated for constant separation f. But instead of taking the distorted initial and final wave function they have obtained the undistorted initial and final wave function in their calculations. The equation was of the form given below

$$T_{fi}^{DWD} = T_{fi}^{B} + T_{fi}^{BG}$$
 (5-10)

Their calculated cross - section is very close to the First Born approximation.

Their method, since then has been followed by Grant and Shapiro (1965) where they have used the exact expressions for β_{f}^{-} and α_{i}^{+} . Here, they found that their result was quite near to Brinkman and Kramer's result. The details discussion of this method are available in Bransden (1970) and McDowell and Coleman (1970).

-

5.5 The Impulse approximation

T . . .

From chapter 1, we know that the impulse approximation for the prior and post can be given by

$$T_{f_{i}}^{IMP} = \langle \phi_{f} | V_{f} (W_{13} + W_{12} - 1) \phi_{i} \rangle$$
 (5-11)

$$T_{fi} = \mathcal{L}(\overline{W_{13}} + W_{12} - 1)\phi_{f}(V_{11}) + V_{12}(V_{12}) + V_$$

Also we have shown in chapter 1, that (5-11) or (5-12) can be reduced into

$$T_{fi}^{IMP} = \angle \phi_f | V_{13} | \phi_i 7$$

$$T_{fi}^{-IMP} = \angle \phi_f | V_{13} | \phi_i 7$$

This approximation has been applied by Pradhan (1957) to the capture process

$$H(is) + P \rightarrow P + H(is)$$
 (5-13)

where in the case of V_{13} he took V_{23} . This simplifies the analysis, but the resulting matrix no longer describes the collision under consideration (Bassel and Gerjuoy, 1960). The calculation on the above process (5-13) has also been carried out by Cheshire (1965) and McDowell (1961). McDowell (1961) has used the correct form of \mathcal{T}_{fi}^{TMP} given in chapter 1, where he did his calculation simultaneously by including and excluding the V_{12} interaction. This approximation has also been applied to proton - helium collision by Bransden and Cheshire (1963) where they have described the impulse approximation as

$$IMP T_{fi} = \angle \phi_{f} | V_{12} + V_{23} + V_{14} + V_{34} | (W_{12} + W_{13} + W_{14} - 2) \phi_{i} \rangle$$

$$(5-14)$$

In this case, the particle 1, incident on a helium atom in the ground state with nucleus 2 and electrons 2 and 3 captures (3) into the ground state by hydrogen leaving residual ion in the ground state.

The post form

$$T_{fi}^{-IMP} = \mathcal{L} \phi_{f} | (W_{12} + W_{23} + W_{14} + W_{34} - 3) | V_{12} + V_{13} + V_{14} | \phi_{17} (5-15)$$

has also been considered.

Due to distortion they neglected V_{12} as well as W_{12}^+ . Similarly they have neglected W_{14}^+ in the same way and the equation (5-14) gives

$$T_{f_{1}}^{IMP} = \langle \phi_{f} | V_{12} + V_{23} + V_{14} + V_{34} | W_{13} + \phi_{1} \rangle$$
 (5-16)

In the post case the V_{34} term is known as the electron electron interaction , which is very difficult to evaluate. So they have expressed

$$T_{fi} = L W_{23} \varphi_{f} | V_{12} + V_{13} + V_{14} | \varphi_{i} > (5-17)$$

The cross - sections have been calculated for both prior (5-16) and post (5-17) form, where they have obtained simple ground state helium wave function. Their results are below the experimental results and has been shown in figure 17.

5.6 Atomic eigenfunction expansion method

Bates two - state method has first been used by McCarroll (1961) for the symmetrical resonance process

 H^+ + H(1S) \rightarrow H(1S) + H^+

Later on, McCarroll and McElroy (1962) has extended the calculations for the non-resonance process

 He^{2+} + H(15) - H(15) + H⁺ (5-18)

McElroy (1963) has done calculations for the accidental resonant reaction

 H_e^{4+} + H(1S) \rightarrow H_e^{+} (2S or 2p) + H⁺ and non-resonant reaction

 H^+ + H(1S) \longrightarrow H(2S or 2p) + H⁺ Lovell & McElroy (1963) have followed the earlier work of McElroy (1963) and investigated the following process

> $H^+ + H(1S) \rightarrow H(1S) + H^+$ $H^+ + H(1S) \rightarrow H(2S) + H^+$ $H^+ + H(1S) \rightarrow H^+ + H(2S)$

The above process (5-18) has later been extended by Wilets and Galleher (1966) where they included 15, 2S and 2p states for their calculations. In some of their calculations they also included 3S and 3p states as well.

On proton - helium scattering, Green et al (1965) have also applied Bates two - state method, where they have used the open - shell function of Eckart (1930)

$$\varphi(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{1},\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{2}) = N\left[e \times p\left(-d\mathbf{r}_{1}\right)e \times p\left(-\beta\mathbf{r}_{1}\right)\right]$$

$$+ e \times p\left(-d\mathbf{r}_{2}\right)e \times p\left(-\beta\mathbf{r}_{2}\right)\right]$$
(5-19)

for the ground - state helium wave - function. In equation

(5-19) N is the normalization factor and \triangleleft and β are given by

 $\alpha = 2.1832$, $\beta = 1.1885$, E = 2.8757.

The sensitivity of the helium wave - function has been investigated by Bransden and Sin Fai lam (1966) where they have done their calculations by employing equation (5-19) as well as two other wave - functions $\phi^{1)-1}$ and $\phi^{2)}$ given below.

$$\phi^{(1)} = \frac{N}{d^3} e^{-\alpha' (\gamma_1 + \gamma_2)}$$
(5-20)

where d = 1.6875 and N is the normalization constant and

$$\Phi^{(2)} = N \left[exp(-\alpha r_1) + (c)exp(-\beta r_1) \right]$$

$$\times \left[exp(-\alpha r_2) + (c)exp(-\beta r_2) \right]$$
(5.21)

where

$$\beta = 1.455799, \beta = 2 \alpha', C = 0.6$$

and $E = -2.86.$

In each case parameters are determined variationally. It has been shown by Shull and Lowdin (1966) and Green et al. (1954) that both (5-19) and (5-21) are good approximation. But the calculated cross - sections of Bransden and Sin Fai

lam (1966) for three different employed wave - functions shown above, do not vary from each other. So they have concluded that the simple helium wave - function is good enough for any further calculations.

Sin Fai lam (196%), has extended this work by the inclusion of the excited states $(2^{1}S, 2^{1}p \text{ states})$ of hydrogen. But that did not agree very well with the experimental data. To compare with the experiment, the calculated cross - sections have to be increased by a factor of up to 30% to allow capture

·

.

into excited states (Mapleton, 1961).

CHAPTER 6

Present calculation on i charge - exchange

<u>Introduction</u> The two - state impact parameter method, first investigated by Bates (1958), has been used for the non - resonant charge - exchange reaction

 $p + H_e (1S^2) \longrightarrow H(1S) + H_e^+(1S)$ which we have described in chapter 1. Our method, though based on the method of Bates (1958), has been modified by applying the 2nd order potential and using the closure approximation derived by Bransden and Coleman (1972). A short description of their method has also been given in chapter 2, which has successfully been used for the excitation process between proton or electron impact from hydrogen atom (Sullivan et al, 1972a, 1972b) as well as for electron impact from helium atom (Berrington et al, 1972).

We are considering the same co-ordinates in the X - Z plane as we did in chapter 4, where the total Hamiltonian is

$$H = -\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{1}^{2} - \frac{1}{2}\nabla_{2}^{2} - \frac{2}{\gamma_{1}} - \frac{2}{\gamma_{2}} - \frac{1}{R_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}} + \frac{1}{\gamma_{12}} + \frac{2}{R}$$
(6-1)

and where \underline{r}_1 , \underline{r}_2 , \underline{R}_1 , \underline{R}_2 and \underline{R} have been defined. Since, in this chapter, we are dealing with the reactions between proton and helium and especially the charge - exchange or electron - capture cases, we get

 $P + He(1s^{2}) \rightarrow H(1s) + He(1s)$ (6-2)

for which, before collision, we get

$$U_{n}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2},t) = \psi_{n}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2})e \qquad (6-3)$$

-64-

and after collision,

$$\widehat{W}_{ij}(\underline{R}_{1},\underline{r}_{2},t) = \chi_{ij}(\underline{R}_{1},\underline{r}_{2})e^{-i(M_{1}+N_{j}+\underline{\theta}_{2}^{2})t+i\theta,\underline{r}_{1}}e^{-i(6-4)}$$

ž

where Ψ_{n} and \mathcal{X}_{ij} are the initial and final Helium wave function respectively, ϵ_{n} is the binding energy of the helium wave - function before collision and $(\mu_{i} + \eta_{j})$ be the binding energy of the wave - function $\mathcal{X}_{ij}(\mathbf{R}_{1}, \mathbf{r}_{2})$ which _ can be split into

$$\mathcal{X}_{ij}(\underline{R}_i, \underline{r}_2) = \Phi_i(\underline{R}_i) \Phi_j(\underline{r}_2)$$

The wave - functions $\phi_i(\underline{R}_1)$ and $\phi_j(\underline{r}_2)$ are given explicitly as

$$\phi_{i}(\underline{R}_{i}) = \frac{i}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-\underline{R}_{i}}$$
(6-5)

a nd

$$\Phi_{j}(\underline{r}_{2}) = \frac{\sqrt{8}}{\sqrt{\pi}} e^{-2\underline{r}_{2}}$$
(6-6)

and which satisfies the equations

$$\left(-\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{1}^{2}-\frac{1}{R_{1}}\right)\varphi_{1}\left(\underline{R}_{1}\right)=\mathcal{M}_{1}\varphi_{1}\left(\underline{R}_{1}\right)$$

and

$$\left(-\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{2}^{2}+\frac{2}{\gamma_{2}^{2}}\right)\phi_{j}\left(\gamma_{2}\right)=\gamma_{j}\phi_{j}\left(\gamma_{2}\right)$$

The helium wave - function satisfies the equation

$$\left\{ \Psi_{n}^{*}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2})\left(-\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{1}^{2}-\frac{1}{2}\nabla_{2}^{2}-\frac{2}{\gamma_{1}}-\frac{2}{\gamma_{2}}+\frac{1}{\gamma_{12}}\right)\Psi_{n}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2})=\epsilon_{n}$$

$$(6-7)$$

Now, we can employ the two - state approximation given by Bates (1958) where the initial and final state will be considered. Therefore

$$\Psi\left(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2},t\right)=\sum_{n}q_{n}(t)U_{n}(\underline{r}_{1},\underline{r}_{2},t)+\sum_{ij}b_{ij}(t)\widehat{W}_{ij}(\underline{R}_{1},\underline{r}_{2})$$
(6-8)

where \sum implies a sum over the discrete states and an integration over the continuum states.

Substituting (6-8) in the time - dependent Schrodinger equation (in atomic units)

$$H\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{r},t)=\frac{\partial\Psi(\underline{r},\underline{r}_{2},t)}{\partial t} \qquad (6-9)$$

and using all the conditions given above, we get a set of coupled equations, given by

$$i \hat{\mathbf{q}}_n + i \sum_{ij} N_{n,ij} \hat{\mathbf{b}}_{ij} = \sum_{n} H_{n,n} \hat{\mathbf{q}}_{n'} + \sum_{ij} k_{n,ij} \hat{\mathbf{b}}_{ij} (6-10)$$

$$i \, b_{ij} + i \sum_{n} N_{ij}, n \, a_n = \sum_{ij} \overline{H_{ij}}, n \, b_n + \sum_{n} \overline{K_{ij}}, n \quad (6-11)$$

where $N_{n,ij}$, $H_{n,n'}$, $K_{n,ij}$, $\overline{N_{ij}}$, $\overline{H_{ij}}$, $\overline{K_{ij'}}$, $\overline{K_{ij'}}$, can be defined in the following way

$$Nn, ij = e \int d\underline{r} \left(d\underline{r} \, \Psi_n(\underline{r}_i, \underline{r}_i) \mathcal{X}_{ij}(\underline{R}_i, \underline{r}_i) e \right) (6-12)$$

$$H_{n,n'} = e \int d\underline{r}_{1} \int d\underline{r}_{2} \Psi_{n}^{*} (\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2}^{*}) (\frac{2}{R} - \frac{1}{R_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}}) \Psi_{n'} (\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2}^{*}) (6-13)$$

$$i E_{n,ij}^{(1)} t$$

$$K_{n,ij} = e \int d\underline{r}_{1} \int d\underline{r}_{2} \Psi_{n} (\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2}) (\frac{2}{R} - \frac{2}{r_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}} + \frac{1}{r_{12}})$$

$$X (\chi_{ij} (\underline{R}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2}) e^{i (\theta, \underline{r}_{1})}) (6-14)$$

$$\overline{N_{ij}}_{n} = e \qquad \left\{ d\underline{r}_{i} \left\{ d\underline{r}_{i} \times \dot{r}_{j} \left(\underline{R}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2} \right) + n \left(\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2} \right) \right\} \right\}$$

$$(6-15)$$
$$\begin{array}{ccc} & & & & & & \\ H_{ij,ij} & = & & \int d\underline{r}_i \int d\underline{r}_2 \ \chi_{ij}^* (\underline{R}_1, \underline{r}_2) \left(-\frac{2}{r_1} - \frac{1}{R_2} + \frac{1}{r_{12}} + \frac{2}{R} \right) \chi_{ij} (\underline{R}_1, \underline{r}_2) \\ & & & & \\ \end{array}$$
(6-16)

Ï

$$\overline{K_{ij,n}} = e^{-iE_{n,ij}t} \int d\underline{r}_{1} \int d\underline{r}_{2} \chi_{ij}^{*} (\underline{R}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2}) \Psi_{n}(\underline{r}_{1}, \underline{r}_{2})$$

$$\times \left(-\frac{1}{R_{1}} - \frac{1}{R_{2}} + \frac{2}{R}\right) e^{i[\vartheta, \underline{r}_{1}]} \qquad (6-17)$$

where

(i)

$$E_{n,ij} = (E_n - E_{ij})$$
 (6-18)
(7)

$$E_{n,n'}^{(2)} = (E_n - E_{n'})$$
 (6-19)

and

$$E_{ij}, i'j' = (\eta_i + \mu_j - \eta_i' - \mu_j')$$
 (6-20)

where the values of ϵ , η , μ can be given by

$$\epsilon = -2.84$$

 $\eta = -0.5$
 $\mu = -0.2$

respectively.

If we, now, consider, these equations for the case of $n \neq 0$, i $\neq 0$, j $\neq 0$, we can approximate (1) by retaining coupling to state n = 0, i = 0, j = 0 only and (2) by neglecting the diagonal terms.

Therefore, we get

$$i Q_n + i \sum_{ij} N_{n,ij} b_{ij} = H_{n,o} Q_o + K_{n,o} b_o$$
 (6-21)

$$i b_{ij} + i \sum N_{ij,n} q_n = \overline{H_{ij,0}} b_0 + \overline{K_{ij,0}} o q_0 \qquad (6-22)$$

for $n \neq 0$, $i j \neq 0$.

For further approximation, we have used $b:j \sim 0$, if $ij \neq 0$ Then

$$i q_n = H_{n,0} \hat{q}_0 + K_{n,0} b_0 \qquad (6-23)$$

$$i q_n = \int_{-\infty}^{t'} dt' \{H_{n,0}(t') q_0(t') + K_{n,0}(t') b_0(t')\} \qquad (6-24)$$

and equations for $n = i \pm j = 0$ become

$$i a_{o} + i N_{o,o} \dot{b}_{o} = H_{o,o} a_{o} + k_{o,o} b_{o} + \frac{1}{i} \sum_{\substack{n \neq o}} H_{o,n}$$

 $\times \int_{-\infty}^{t'} dt' \{ H_{n,o}(t') a_{o}(t') + k_{n,o}(t') b_{o}(t') \} (6-25)$

and also from (6-22), we get

$$ib_{o} + i No_{io} a_{o} = Ho_{io} b_{o} + ko_{io} a_{o} \qquad (6-26)$$

As in chapter 2 the potentials H_0 , n (t) $H_{n_2,0}(t')$ and $H_0, n(t) K_{n_2,0}(t')$ are too complicated to evaluate exactly. Hence we have applied a further approximation called closure approximation as in chapter 2, and by the help of which we can write

$$H_{0,n}(t)H_{n,0}(t') = \left[H_{n,n}(t,t') - \sum_{j=0}^{N} H_{nj}(t)H_{jm}(t')\right]$$

$$\times exp(\epsilon_0 - \bar{\epsilon})(t-t')$$

The other potential $H_{O_1 n}(t)Kn_{t,O}$ (t') has been dropped ffrom our calculations.

Now substituting n = 0, equation(6725) can be given by

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{\hat{L}}_{o} + \mathbf{i} \, \mathbf{N}_{o,o} \, \mathbf{\hat{b}}_{o} &= \mathbf{H}_{o,o} \, \mathbf{\hat{L}}_{o} + \mathbf{k}_{o,o} \, \mathbf{\hat{b}}_{o} + \frac{1}{i} \int_{-\infty}^{t} \left[\mathbf{H}_{o,o}(\mathbf{t}, \mathbf{t}') - \sum_{j=0}^{N} \mathbf{H}_{oj}(\mathbf{t}) \, \mathbf{H}'_{j,o}(\mathbf{t}') \right] \mathbf{q}_{o}(\mathbf{t}') \\ &\times e \times p\left(\epsilon_{o} - \overline{\epsilon} \right) \left(\mathbf{t} - \mathbf{t}' \right) \mathbf{d} \mathbf{t}' \qquad (6-27) \end{aligned}$$

If we now take N = 0, the equation(6.27) gives $i\dot{d}_{o} + i No_{i} \circ \dot{b}_{o} = Ho_{io}d_{o} + ko_{i} \circ \dot{b}_{o} + \frac{1}{i} \int_{-\infty}^{t'} [Ho_{i}\circ(t,t') - Ho_{i}\circ(t)Ho_{i}\circ(t')]d_{o}(t')$ $= \frac{1}{i} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} (6-28) (t-t')dt'$

where

The term $H_{0,o}$ (t,t) can be expressed like equation (4-9) defined in chapter 4 where $z = \Im t$ and $z' = \Im t'$ and can be solved in the same way as noted in chapter 4. In this case we have taken the values of the effective energy as 1.14, where we have applied the same condition given in chapter 4. The equation (6-26) and (6-28) has been solved by Hamming's method to get the time -dependent coefficients $a_0(t)$ and $b_0(t)$ with the initial boundary conditions $4_o(-\infty) = 1$ and $b_o(-\infty) = 0$

Total cross - section for charge - exchange from the initial state i to the final state f is now obtained by using the formula

$$G_{if} = 2 \pi a_o^2 \int_0^{\infty} \rho |b_f(+\infty)|^2 d\rho$$
 (6-29)

where ρ is impact parameter.

Calculations

Calculations have been investigated for three different cases where we have used the one - parameter simple helium wave function given by

$$\Psi(\underline{\Upsilon}_{1},\underline{\Upsilon}_{2}) = \frac{N}{\pi} e^{-\alpha(\underline{\Upsilon}_{1} + \underline{\Upsilon}_{2})}$$
(6-30)

where $N = \alpha^3$, $\alpha = 1.68$, $\epsilon_o = -2.8472$. <u>Case A</u> Distorted wave approximation (1) In this case we have considered the coupling for initial state only and so the equation (6-26) and (6-28), mentioned above, can be given by

$$i \underline{q}_{o} = H_{o,o} \underline{q}_{o} + \frac{i}{\underline{l}_{i}} \int dt' [H_{o,o}(t,t') - H_{o,o}(t) H_{o,o}(t')]_{(6-31)}$$

$$\times \underline{q}_{o}(t') e \times p(\overline{e} - \epsilon_{o})(t-t')$$

$$i \underline{b}_{o} = K_{o,o} \underline{q}_{o} \qquad (6-32)$$

The cross - section of the charge - exchange can be calculated by using the formula (6-29) given above.

<u>Case B.</u> Distorted wave approximation (2) The equations (6-26) and (6-28) can also be written in the following forms

$$i\dot{a}_{o} = \frac{H_{010} - N_{010}K_{0.0}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}}a_{o} + \frac{K_{010} - N_{010}H_{010}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}}b_{o} - \frac{i}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}}\int_{-\infty}^{t} \left[H_{010}(t,t') - H_{010}(t)H_{010}(t')\right]$$

$$X a_{o}(t') exp(\epsilon_{o} - \bar{\epsilon})(t - t')dt' \qquad (6-33)$$

ənd

$$\begin{split} i\dot{b_{o}} &= \frac{H_{010} - N_{010} k_{010}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}} \dot{b_{o}} + \frac{k_{010} - N_{010} H_{010}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}} q_{0} \\ &+ \frac{1}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}} \int_{-\infty}^{t} \left[H_{010} (t_{1}t') - H_{010} (t) H_{010} (t') \right] \\ &\times q_{0} (t') \exp(\epsilon_{0} - \bar{\epsilon}) (t - t') dt' \\ \end{split}$$
(6-34)

In case B for elastic scattering we have used the formula (6-31), but for the charge - exchange case we have used

$$ib_{0} = \frac{H_{010} - N_{010} K_{010}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}} b_{0} + \frac{K_{010} - N_{010} H_{010}}{1 - |N_{010}|^{2}} q_{0}$$

(6-35)

cross - sections have been calculated using the same formula (6-29).

<u>Case C</u> In this case we have used the formulas (6-33) and (6-34) as given above where the expressions for full couplings has been used and applied the same formula (6-29) to get the cross - sections.

The methods for evaluating the integrals (6-12), (6-13), (6-14), (6-15), (6-16), (6-17) will be shown in the appendices. The results of the present calculations are shown for various proton energies in the table 4, together with the results of Bransden and Sin fai lam (1966), Green et al (1965), Mapleton (1961) and the results of the experiments which measure the total cross - sections for capture summed over all final states. To compare with the experiment the calculated cross sections have to be increased by a factor of up to 30% to allow for capture into excited states (Mapleton, 1961). Figures (3, 4, 5, 6), (7, 8, 9, 10), (11, 12, 13), show the present result for the probability of capture into the 15 state for various energies for Case A, Case B and Case C respectively.

Figure 14 shows the present results for Case A, Case B and Case C discussed above. Among these calculations we get better accuracy for Case C only which give quite good results between 30 to 100 Kev when we compare them with the existing experimental results. For higher energies the Case C and Case B give larger results than Case A.

In figure (15) we are comparing the results for the present calculation for Case C with the experimental results. It is seen from figure 15 or table 4 that the results of the present calculations is nearly 30% larger than the experimental results at 500 Kev, nearly 50% larger at 1000 Kev, nearly 4 times larger at 10 Mev.

In figure 16 we have shown our calculated results for Case C as well as the existing theoretical results given by Green et al (1965) and Bransden and Sin fai lam (1966). The present results are very close to Green et al (1965). There are small differences between the results of the present calculation and Bransden and Sin fai lam (1966) at lower energies. But it is seen at once that the maximum differences between the results of the present and Bransden and Sin fai lam are 30% at higher energies.

Figure 17 shows the results of the present calculations for Case A and the results obtained by Mapleton (1961) and Bransden and Cheshire (1963). The present results do not agree with the results by Impulse approximation, but quite near to Mapleton's results at higher energies. From the above interpretation of the present results it is seen that the considerable disagreement between theory and the experiment at higher energies is not substantially improved by employing the 2nd order potential in Bates two state method.

CHAPTER 7

Numerical methods_

In this chapter, we give a short description of our calculations involved in chapter 6, as the calculations in chapter 4 have also been done in the same way. From chapter 6, we get that the most difficult terms are

 $N_{0,0}$, $\overline{N}_{0,0}$, $K_{0,0}$, $\overline{K}_{0,0}$, The expression for the matrix elements are of the forms

$$I_{I} = e^{-i\theta^{2}t/2} \int_{0}^{1} \chi^{n} (1-\chi)^{m} \left(\frac{R}{\Delta^{2}} + \frac{1}{\Delta^{3}}\right) e^{-R\Delta} e^{i\theta^{2}t\chi} d\chi$$
(7-1)
$$I_{2} = e^{-i\theta^{2}t/2} \int_{0}^{1} \chi^{n} (1-\chi)^{m} \left(\frac{R^{2}}{\Delta^{3}} + \frac{3R}{\Delta^{4}} + \frac{3}{\Delta^{5}}\right) e^{-R\Delta} e^{i\theta^{2}t\chi} d\chi$$
(7-2)

where
$$\Delta^2 = \lambda^2 x + (1-x)(\mu^2 + \nu^2 x)$$
 $n, m \ge 0$ (7-3)

The above functions depender on the proton velocity V and oscillate: rapidly as V increases. To perform the integration, the integrals have been divided into three sections

 $0.0 \le \chi \le 0.15$, $0.15 \le \chi \le 0.85$, $0.85 \le \chi \le 1.0$ and then the calculations have been done by using the Gaussian interpolation method. At 30 Kev, the number of Gaussian points are 6 and for higher energies more points have been considered to get the same accuracy.

The matrix elements for the Case A, Case B and Case C have been solved by using Hamming's method described by Wilf and Ralston (1967) as given below.

Hamming's method

Hammings method is a modification of Milne's predictor corrector method which has been used to solve the first order differential equation

$$\frac{dy}{dx} = F(x, y) \qquad (7-4)$$

with the given initial point $y(x_0) = y_0$. This method has two advantages, firstly it is a suitable fourth - order integration procedure that requires the evaluation of the right - hand side of the system only two times per step. Secondly at each step the calculation procedure gives an estimate for the local truncation error, thus procedure is able without a significant amount of calculation time, to choose and change the step - length h.

Let $X_n = 3$, X_{n-2} , $X_n = 1$, X_n be the known values. Now results at points

$$X_{n+1} = X_n + h$$

are computed by the formulas below Predictor::

$$P_{n+1} = J_{n-3} + \frac{4h}{3} \left[2J'_n - J_{n-1} + 2J'_{n-2} \right] \quad (7-5)$$

Modifier:

$$M_{n+1} = P_{n+1} - \frac{112}{121} \left(P_n - C_n \right)$$
 (7-6)

$$M_{n+1} = F(X_{n+1}, Y_{n+1})$$
 (7-7)

Corrector:

$$C_{n+1} = \frac{1}{8} \left[9 y_n - y_{n-2} + 3h \left(M_{n+1} + 2 y_n - y_{n-1} \right) \right]$$
(7-8)

Final value:

$$y_{n+1} = C_{n+1} + \frac{q}{121} \left(P_{n+1} - C_{n+1} \right) \quad (7-9)$$

where Y Y, P, M, M, and C are column vectors, and the truncation error can be given by

$$T_2 = \frac{q}{121} (C_{n+1} - P_{n+1})$$
 (7-10)

As this method is not self - starting, it is very important that the starting values should be as accurate as possible, because errors in these starting values may increase during computation. So to do this we have used Newton's interpolation formula using forward differences to get the required values $\frac{1}{2}$ 1, $\frac{1}{2}$ and $\frac{1}{3}$. For example, we have

$$\begin{aligned} y_{1} &= y_{0} + \frac{h}{24} \left[q y_{0}' + i q y_{1}' - 5 y_{2}' + y_{3}' \right] & (7-11) \\ y_{2} &= y_{0} + \frac{h}{3} \left[y_{0}' + 4 y_{1}' + y_{2}' \right] & (7-12) \\ y_{3} &= y_{0} + \frac{3h}{8} \left(y_{0}' + 3 y_{1}' + 3 y_{2}' + y_{3}' \right) & (7-13) \end{aligned}$$

To use these formulas we estimate the Y1, Y2 and Y3 and calculate y_1', y_2', y_3' by using the differential equation and then calculate Y1, Y2, Y3 using(7.0),(7.12),(7.13) respectively. Then we iterate until convergence. Also to start with we can set

$$P_n - C_n = 0$$
 (7-14)

Step - length can be doubled or halved in the following way. In our case we have set two errors $\alpha_1 = .0001$ and $\alpha_2 = .00001$ and adjustment can be done by the test value

$$\delta = \sum_{i=1}^{n} a_i (P_{i+1} - C_{i+1})$$
(7-15)

when $\delta \gamma \alpha_i$, the step-length has been halved and following inter polation formulas have been used

$$J_{n-\frac{3}{2}} = \frac{1}{256} \left(12 J_n + 135 J_{n-1} + 108 J_{n-2} + J_{n-3} \right) + \frac{h}{256} \left(-3 J_n' - 54 J_{n-1}' + 27 J_{n-2} \right)$$
(7-17)

Similarly, when $\delta \angle d_2$, the step - length has been doubled.

The integrals in (6-31) etc. were evaluated by repeated application of Simpson's rule.

Total cross-sections have been calculated by applying the Simpson's rule as well.

CHAPTER 8

<u>Conclusion</u>

The main contribution, in this thesis, is the application of the 2nd - order potential for both excitation and charge exchange processes.

In the case of excitation, as there is no experiment, we have compared our results with the existing theoretical results. It is found that the present results are in close agreement with other results above 100 Kev. At low energies, less than 100 Kev, our results are nearly 40% smaller than the results of Flannery where he did his calculations by taking 1S, 2S and 2p states of the target. It means that the coupling for the rearrangement channel is likely to have significant effect on the Direct excitation cross - sections at low energies and needs further investigation as indicated in paper II (Bransden et al, 1972).

But on the charge - exchange, experimental results are available and it is seen that the results obtained by including the 2nd order potential with the Bates two state method is not very satisfactory and gives a larger result than the experiment at high energies. It is now known that the formulation of the method (which we already presented in Chapter 6) is not consistent with the charge - exchange process. On the other hand, it provides better results for the Distorted wave method at high energies which is very close for the experimental results as well as the calculation of the first Born approximation. Among the theoretical calculations on charge - exchange, only the results of first Born approximation give: quite reliable results at high energies as compared to the experimental results. Like Born approximation, the results of the Distorted wave approximation do not agree with the experimental results at low energies.

For excitation process, we believe that our method should provide better results, as it did in the case of electron helium cases shown in paper IV (Berrington et al, 1972) where some experimental results are available. But for charge exchange process that conclusion is not applicable as it is a complicated process where instead of one orbit we have taken two orbits. More refined work should be needed on this particular topic.

APPENDIX A

Evaluation of the integrals:

$$I_{I} = \int e^{\lambda \underline{r}_{I}} - \mu \underline{R}_{I} \quad i \forall \underline{r}_{I} \quad (A-1)$$

$$I_{2} = \int \frac{e^{-\lambda \underline{r}_{1}}}{r_{1}} e^{-\lambda \underline{r}_{1}} e^{-\lambda \underline{$$

.

$$I_3 = \int_{e}^{-\Lambda \Upsilon_i} \frac{-\Lambda R_i}{R_i} e^{-\Lambda \Upsilon_i} d\Upsilon_i$$
(A-3)

where $\underline{R}_1 = \underline{\gamma}_1 - \underline{R}_2$

To integrate $\ensuremath{\,\mathrm{I}}_1$, we have to use the Fourier's transforms which is given by

$$e^{-\lambda r^{o}} = \frac{1}{\pi^{2}} \int \frac{\lambda}{(\lambda^{2} + q^{2})^{2}} e^{-\lambda r^{o}} dq$$
 (A-4)

$$\frac{e}{\gamma} = \frac{1}{2\pi^2} \int \frac{1}{(\lambda^2 + q^2)} e^{iq \cdot \gamma} dq \qquad (A-5)$$

Therefore

$$I_{l} = \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{1}{4\pi^{4}} \int d\underline{Y}_{l} \int d\underline{q}_{l} \int d\underline{q}_{2} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2}+q_{1}^{2})} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2}+q_{2}^{2})} (A-6)$$

$$X = \exp \left[i \left(\underline{q}_{l}, \underline{Y}_{l}^{2} + \underline{q}_{2}^{2} (\underline{Y}_{l} - \underline{R}) + \underline{V}, \underline{Y}_{l} \right]$$

$$= \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{1}{4\pi^{4}} \int dq_{1} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2}+q_{1}^{2})} \int dq_{2} \frac{1}{(\mu^{2}+q_{2}^{2})}$$

$$\times \int dr_{1}^{*} e^{x} p \left[\frac{q_{1}}{2} \cdot \frac{r_{1}}{2} + \frac{q_{2}}{2} \cdot (\frac{r_{1}}{2} - \frac{R}{2}) + U \cdot \frac{r_{1}}{2} \right]$$
(A-7)

integrating over $\underline{\Upsilon}_{j}$

$$I_{1} = \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{1}{4\pi 4} \int dq_{1} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2} + q_{1}^{2})} \int dq_{2} \frac{1}{(\mu^{2} + q_{2}^{2})} \times (2\pi)^{3} \delta(q_{1} + q_{2} + \theta) \exp(-iq_{2} \cdot R)$$
(A-8)

$$= \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{2}{\pi} \int dq_{1} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2}+q_{1}^{2})} \int dq_{2} \frac{1}{(\mu^{2}+q_{1}^{2})} \times \delta(q_{1}+q_{2}+u) \exp(-iq_{2} R)$$
(A-9)

put

$$\frac{q_2}{q_2} = \frac{q_1}{q_1} + \varphi$$

$$dq_2 = dq_1$$

Integrating over dq_{12}

$$I_{1} = \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{2}{\pi r} \left\{ dq_{1} \frac{1}{(\lambda^{2} + q_{1}^{2})} \frac{e^{i(q_{1} + b) \cdot R}}{(\mu^{2} + (q_{1} + b)^{2})} \right\}$$
(A-10)

$$= \frac{\partial^2}{\partial \lambda \partial \mu} \frac{2}{\pi} e^{i\frac{\partial \cdot R}{\partial q_i}} \int dq_i \frac{1}{(\lambda^2 + q_i^2)} \frac{e^{i\frac{Q_i}{2}} \cdot \frac{R}{(\mu^2 + (q_i + b^2)^2)}}{(\mu^2 + (q_i + b^2)^2)}$$
(A-11)

-

$$= \frac{2}{\pi} \frac{2}{2\sqrt{2}} e^{i\theta \cdot R} I$$

(A-12)

where

$$I = \int dq_{1} \frac{1}{(\Lambda^{2} + q_{1}^{2})} \frac{e^{i q_{1} \cdot R}}{(\Lambda^{2} + (q_{1} + v)^{2})}$$
(A-13)

To integrate I, we have used Feyman's formula, Feyman, 1949

$$\frac{1}{ab} = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{dx}{\left[ax + b(1-x)\right]^{2}} \qquad (A-14)$$

Therefore I gives

$$I = \int_{0}^{l} dx \int dp \frac{e^{\frac{p}{P} \cdot R} e^{-i \cdot \theta \cdot R (1-x)}}{[p^{2} + \Delta^{2}]^{2}}$$
(A-15)

where

$$P = Q_1 + U(1 - x)$$
 (A-16)

$$\Delta^{2} = \lambda^{2} \chi + (1 - \chi) (1 + \upsilon^{2} \chi)$$
 (A-17)

$$\int \frac{e^{i \underline{P} \cdot \underline{R}}}{(p^2 + \Delta^2)^2} = \frac{\pi^2}{\Delta} e^{-\Delta \underline{R}}$$
(A-18)

we get

$$I = \pi^{2} \int_{0}^{1} dx \ e \qquad \frac{1}{\Delta} \qquad (A-19)$$

Therefore

$$I_{I} = 2\pi \frac{\partial}{\partial \lambda} \frac{\partial}{\partial \mu} e^{i \vartheta \cdot R} \int_{0}^{1} dx \frac{1}{\Delta} e^{-i \vartheta \cdot R(1-\chi) - R\Delta}$$
(A-20)

$$\frac{\partial \Delta}{\partial \lambda} = \frac{2\lambda x}{2\Delta}$$
 (A-21)

$$\frac{\partial \Delta}{\partial \mu} = \frac{2\mu(1-\chi)}{2\Delta}$$
 (A-22)

$$I_{I} = 2\pi\lambda \int_{0}^{1} dx \times (I-\chi) e^{i\theta \cdot \underline{R} \times (I-\chi)} \left(\frac{1}{\Delta} \frac{\partial}{\partial A}\right)^{2} \frac{1}{\Delta} e^{-R\Delta}$$

$$\chi e^{-R\Delta} e^{i\theta \cdot \underline{R} \times} \qquad (A-23)$$

$$I_{2} = -2\pi \int_{a}^{b} \left(\frac{1}{x} e^{i\Theta \cdot R \times} \left(\frac{1}{\Delta} \frac{\partial}{\partial \Delta} \right) \frac{1}{\Delta} e^{-R\Delta} \right) \\ \times e^{i\Theta \cdot R \times} dx \qquad (A-24)$$

$$I_{3} = -2\pi\lambda \int_{0}^{1} (1-\chi) e^{i\Theta \cdot R \chi} \left(\frac{1}{\Delta} \frac{\partial}{\partial \Delta}\right) \frac{1}{\Delta} e^{-R\Delta}$$

$$x e^{i\Theta \cdot R}$$

$$(A-25)$$

Therefore

$$I_{1} = 2 \pi \lambda \mu e^{i \vartheta \cdot \underline{R}} \int_{0}^{1} dx \times (i - x) \left(\frac{3R}{\Delta^{4}} + \frac{3}{\Delta^{5}} + \frac{R^{2}}{\Delta^{3}} \right) \chi$$

$$\left(e^{-RA} e^{i \vartheta \cdot \underline{R} \times} \right) dx \qquad (A-26)$$

Similarly,

.

_ _

$$I_{2} = 2\Pi \mu e \int_{0}^{10.R} (1-\chi) \left(\frac{R}{\Delta^{2}} + \frac{1}{\Delta^{3}}\right) e^{-R\Delta} e^{10.R\chi} d\chi \qquad (A-27)$$

$$I_{3} = 2\pi\Lambda e \int_{0}^{10.R} \left(\frac{R}{\Delta^{2}} + \frac{1}{\Delta^{3}}\right) e^{-R\Delta i 0.R \times dx}$$

(A_28)

-83-APPENDIX B

Evaluation of the integrals:

$$I_{I} = \int r e^{-\lambda r} \frac{e^{-\mu | \underline{r} - \underline{R} |}}{| \underline{r} - \underline{R} |} d\underline{r} \qquad (B-1)$$

$$I_{2} = \left\{ \gamma^{n} e^{-\lambda \gamma} - \mu | \underline{\gamma} - \underline{R} \right\}$$
(B-2)

$$I_{3} = \int r^{n} \frac{e^{-\lambda r}}{|r-r|} dr \qquad (B-3)$$

To solve I_1 , I_2 , I_3 the expansion series by Watson (1958) has been used

We know

$$\frac{e}{|\underline{r}-\underline{R}|} = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{(2\ell+i)k_{\ell+\frac{1}{2}}(\mu R) I_{\ell+\frac{1}{2}}(\mu r)P_{\ell}(G_{K}e)}{\sqrt{r} \sqrt{R}} \quad (B-4)$$

where

$$\gamma \leq R$$
, $\cos \theta = \frac{\gamma \cdot R}{\gamma R}$

$$K_{\ell+\frac{1}{2}} = \int_{\frac{1}{2}\mu R}^{\frac{1}{2}} e^{\mu R} \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{(\ell+n)!}{n! (\ell-n)! (2\mu R)^n}$$
(B-5)

$$I_{\ell+\frac{1}{2}}(\mu r) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\pi}\mu r} \left[\ell \sum_{n=0}^{\mu r} \frac{(-)^{n} (\ell+n)!}{n! (\ell-n)! (2\mu r)^{n}} \right]$$

+ (-)
$$e \sum_{n=0}^{l+1} \frac{(l+n)!}{n! (l-n)! (2/47)^n}$$
 (B-6)

$$P_{\ell}(\cos \Theta) = \frac{4\pi}{2\ell + i} \sum_{m=-\ell}^{\ell} \mathcal{I}_{\ell}^{m}(\Theta_{2}, \varphi_{2}) \mathcal{I}_{\ell}^{m}(\Theta_{1}, \varphi_{1})$$
(B-7)

$$\frac{1}{|\underline{\Upsilon} - \underline{R}|} = \frac{1}{\underline{\Upsilon}} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \left(\frac{R}{\underline{\Upsilon}}\right)^{\ell} P_{\ell}(C_{os}\theta) \qquad \underline{\Upsilon} \ge R$$
(B-8)

$$= \frac{1}{R} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \left(\frac{\gamma}{R}\right)^{\ell} P_{\ell} (C \circ \varsigma \Theta) \qquad \gamma \leq R$$
(B-9)

where

$$\cos \theta = \cos \theta_1 \cos \theta_2 + \sin \theta_1 \sin \theta_2 \cos (\phi_1 - \phi_2) \qquad (B-10)$$

 (Θ_1, φ_1) and (Θ_2, φ_2) are the polar angles of r & R. The integrals I_1 and I_2 , I_3 can easily be evaluated for definite values of n, m and ℓ . The integral I_2 is calculated in the same way after expressing it as

$$I_2 = -\frac{\partial}{\partial \mu} I_1$$
 (B-11)

APPENDIX C

Elliptical integral for evaluation of the integral:

$$I(\underline{R},\underline{R}') = \int \frac{e^{-\alpha r}}{|\underline{r}-\underline{R}||\underline{r}-\underline{R}'|} d\underline{r} \qquad (C-1)$$

By following the method given by Coleman (1970), we can express I as

$$I(R,R') = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{4\pi}{(2\ell+i)} P_{\ell}(\cos \theta) \int_{0}^{\infty} e^{-\alpha' r} V_{\ell}(r,R) V_{\ell}(r,R') r^{2} dr$$

$$= 4\pi [A + NB + C]$$
(C-2)

where

$$V_{\ell}(\Upsilon, R) = \Upsilon^{\ell}/R^{\ell+1}$$
 if ΥLR

$$= R^{\ell} / \gamma^{\ell+1} \qquad \text{if} \quad \gamma > R \quad (C-3)$$

and

i

$$A = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2\ell+1)} P_{\ell}(\cos \Theta) \frac{1}{(RR')^{\ell+1}} \int_{0}^{R} e^{-\alpha r} r^{2\ell+2} dr \quad (C-4)$$

$$B = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2\ell+1)} P_{\ell} (\cos \theta) \left(\frac{R}{R}\right)^{\ell} \frac{1}{R}$$
(C-5)

$$\mathbf{C} = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2\ell+1)} P_{\ell}(\cos \theta) (RR')^{\ell} \int_{R}^{\infty} \frac{e^{-\alpha' r}}{r'^{2\ell}} dr \qquad (C-6)$$

$$N = \int_{R'}^{R} \gamma e^{-d\gamma} d\gamma = \left(\frac{dR'+1}{d^2} e^{-dR'} - \frac{dR+1}{d^2} e^{-dR}\right) \quad (C-7)$$

Putting

$$Y = R'y, \quad Y' = R' \longrightarrow Y = 1$$

$$A = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2\ell+1)} R' \left(\frac{R'}{R}\right)^{\ell+1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{-\alpha R'y}{\ell} y^{2\ell+2} P_{\ell}(\cos\theta) dy \quad (C-8)$$

$$= \int_{0}^{1} \frac{-\alpha R'y}{\ell} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2\ell+1)} R' \left(\frac{R'y^{2}}{R}\right)^{\ell+1} P_{\ell}(\cos\theta) dy$$

Now

$$\sum_{l=0}^{\infty} t^{l} P_{k}(\cos \theta) = (1 - 2t\cos \theta + t^{2})^{-\frac{1}{2}} |t| \leq 1$$
(C-9)

Also

$$\sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{z}{\ell + \frac{1}{2}} P_{\ell}(\cos \theta) = \int_{0}^{z} \frac{dt}{\int t \int 1 - 2t \cos \theta + t^{2}}$$

$$(C_{-10})$$

.

Put

$$\sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2\ell+1} R' \left(\frac{R'Y^2}{R}\right)^{\ell+1} P_{\ell}(\cos\theta) = \frac{R'Y}{2\sqrt{R}} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{\ell+\frac{1}{2}} R' P_{\ell}(\cos\theta)$$
(C-11)

 $Z = \frac{R'}{R} y^2$

Let

$$t = \frac{1 - \cos \psi}{1 + \cos \psi} \qquad (C-12)$$

$$C_{os} \psi = \frac{1-t}{1+t}$$
 (C-13)

then

and
$$t = z \longrightarrow \psi = \phi = \cos^{-1}\left(\frac{1-z}{1+z}\right)$$

Also putting the values of t, we get

$$1 - 2 \pm \cos \Theta + t^{2} = \frac{4(1 - \kappa^{2} \sin^{2} \psi)}{(1 + \cos \psi)^{2}}$$
(C-14)

where 2

- -

$$k^{2} = \frac{1}{2} (1 + \cos \theta)$$

= $\cos^{2} \frac{\theta}{2}$ (C-15)

$$\frac{dt}{d\psi} = \frac{2 \sin \psi}{(1 + \cos \psi)^2} \qquad (C-16)$$

$$t^{\frac{1}{2}} = \frac{\sin \psi}{1 + \cos \psi} \qquad (C-17)$$

$$\frac{dt}{\sqrt{t}} = \frac{2 d\Psi}{1 + \cos\Psi} \qquad (C-18)$$

Therefore

: •

$$\int_{0}^{2} \frac{dt}{\sqrt{t} \sqrt{1 - 2t\cos\theta + t^{2}}} = \int_{0}^{\phi} \frac{d\psi}{\sqrt{1 - k^{2}\sin^{2}\psi}} = F(\phi, k) \quad (C-19)$$

$$A = \frac{R'}{2} \left(\frac{R'}{R}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \int e^{-\alpha R' y} F(\phi, k) dy$$
(C-20)

$$B = \frac{1}{2(RR')^{k_{2}}} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(\ell+\frac{1}{2})} \left(\frac{R'}{R}\right)^{\ell+\frac{1}{2}} P_{L}(Cos \Theta)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(RR')^{k_{2}}} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(\ell+\frac{1}{2})} \left(\frac{R'}{R}\right)^{\ell+\frac{1}{2}} P_{L}(Cos \Theta)$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(RR')^{k_{2}}} \int_{0}^{Z_{1}} \frac{dt}{(1-2tCos\Theta+t^{2})^{k_{2}}}$$

$$= \frac{1}{2(RR')^{k_{2}}} F(\varphi_{1}, k) \qquad (C-21)$$

where

.

$$\phi_{1} = C_{0S}^{-1} \frac{1-Z_{1}}{1+Z_{1}}$$
(C-22)

and $Z_1 = \frac{R'}{R}$

$$C = \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2\ell+1} \frac{R^{\ell'}}{R^{\ell-1}} \int_{1}^{\infty} \frac{-\alpha R'z}{z^{2\ell}} P_{\ell}(\cos \theta) dz$$

$$= \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2\ell+1} P_{\ell}(\cos \theta) \frac{R^{\ell}}{R^{\ell-1}} \int_{1}^{\infty} \frac{e^{-dR^{\prime}z}}{z^{2\ell}} dz$$

$$= \frac{R}{2} \left(\frac{R}{R'}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{1}^{\infty} Z \ell F(\phi_{2}, k) dz$$

(C-23)

where

$$\phi_2 = \frac{1-z'}{1+z'}$$
, $Z' = \frac{R'}{Rz^2}$

Therefore

$$I(R, R') = 2\pi \left[\frac{NF(\phi_{1}, k)}{(RR')^{\frac{1}{2}}} + \frac{R'^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sqrt{R}} \int_{0}^{t} y e^{-\alpha'R'y} F(\phi, k) dy + \frac{R'^{\frac{3}{2}}}{\sqrt{R'}} \int_{1}^{\infty} Z e^{-\alpha'RZ} F(\phi_{2}, k) dz \right] \quad (C-24)$$

APPENDIX D

List of integrals for

$$H^{+} + He(15^{2}) \longrightarrow H^{+} + He(15, 25, 2P)$$

$$V_{00}(R) = \langle \Psi(15) | V | \Psi(15) \rangle \qquad (D-1)$$

$$= 16N_{1} \Big[J_{0}(2d, R) + 2C_{1} J_{0}(d+\beta, R) + c_{1}^{2} J_{1}(2\beta, R) \Big]$$

$$V_{10}(R) = \langle \Psi(15) | V | \Psi(25) \rangle$$

$$= 64N_{1}N_{2} \Big[\{ J_{0}(d+\beta, R) + c_{1} J_{0}(\beta+\beta, R) \} A$$

$$+ B \Big\{ 2 J_{0}(d+\lambda, R) + C_{2} J_{1}(\beta+\lambda, R)$$

$$+ 2C_{1} J_{0}(d+\lambda, R) + c_{1} C_{2} J_{1}(\beta+\lambda, R) \Big\} \Big]$$

$$(D-2)$$

- - -

$$\begin{split} & \sqrt{22} \left(R \right) = \mathcal{L} \left(\psi(2\,s) \right) \vee \left(\psi(2\,s) \right) \\ &= 64 \, N_2^2 \left[\frac{1}{(2P)^3} \left\{ 2 \, J_0 \left(2\Lambda_3 R \right) + 2 \, c_2 \, J_1 \left(\Lambda_4 + \Lambda_4 , R \right) + c_2^2 \, J_2 \left(\mu_4 + \Lambda_4 , R \right) \right. \\ &+ \left\{ \frac{2}{l \left(2\Lambda \right)^3} + \frac{12 \, c_2}{\left(\Lambda_4 + \Lambda_4 \right)^4} + \frac{24 \, c_2^2}{\left(2\Lambda_4 + \Lambda_4 \right)^5} \right\} J_0 \left(2P, R \right) \\ &+ \left\{ \frac{4}{(P + \Lambda)^3} + \frac{6 \, c_2}{\left(P + \Lambda_4 \right)^4} + \frac{12}{\left(P + \Lambda_4 \right)^4} \right\} J_0 \left(P + \Lambda_3 R \right) \\ &+ \left\{ \frac{c_2}{\left(P + \Lambda_4 \right)^3} + \frac{l}{\left(P + \Lambda_4 \right)^3} + \frac{6 \, c_2}{\left(P + \Lambda_4 \right)^4} \right\} J_1 \left(P + \Lambda_4 , R \right) \right] \end{split}$$

$$V_{13}(R) = \angle \Psi(15) | V | \Psi(2P_0) >$$

$$= 64N_1N_3 \sqrt{\pi} \quad J_{1,0}(R) B \left[L(\alpha + 9, R) + C_1 L(\beta + 9, R) - \left(\frac{1}{(\alpha + 9)^5} + \frac{C_1}{(\beta + 9)^5}\right) \frac{8}{R^2} \right] \quad (D-4)$$

Also

- - - - - -

$$V_{13}(R) = \langle \Psi(15) | V | \Psi(2P_{\pm 1}) \rangle$$

$$= 64 N_1 N_3 \sqrt{\pi} \int_{1, \pm 1} \langle R \rangle B \left[L (\alpha + q, R) + C_1 L (\beta + q, R) - \left(\frac{1}{(\alpha + q)^5} + \frac{C_1}{(\beta + q)^5} \right) \frac{8}{R^2} \right]$$

$$V_{2P_0} V_{2P_0}(R) = L \Psi (2P_0) | V | \Psi (2P_0) \gamma$$

$$= 16 N_3^2 \left[\frac{24}{(2q)^5} \int_{1}^{\infty} \frac{1}{(2q)^5} + \int_{1}^{\infty} \right], \quad m = 0$$

$$(D-5)$$

$$V_{2}P_{\pm 1}, {}^{2}P_{\pm 1}(R) = \langle \Psi(2P_{\pm 1}) | \Psi | \Psi(2P_{\pm 1}) \rangle$$

$$= 16 N_{3}^{2} \left[\frac{24 J_{0}(2P,R)}{(2P_{1})^{5}} + I_{\pm 1} \right]$$
re

where

.

$$J_{o}(Z,R) = \frac{1}{Z^{3}} \left(\frac{Z}{2} + \frac{1}{R} \right) e^{-2R}$$
(D-8)

$$J_{1}(z,R) = \frac{1}{z^{4}} \left[\left(\frac{6}{R} + 4z + Rz^{2} \right) e^{-2R} \right]$$
 (D-9)

$$J_{2}(Z,R) = \frac{1}{z^{5}} \left(R^{2} z^{3} + 6R z^{2} + 18Z + \frac{24}{R} \right) e^{-ZR}$$
(D-10)

$$L(Z,R) = \frac{1}{z^{5}R^{2}} \left(R^{3}Z^{3} + 4Z^{2}R^{2} + 8ZR + 8 \right) e^{-ZR}$$
(D-11)

$$A = \left(\frac{2}{(d+\lambda)^{3}} + \frac{6c_{2}}{(d+\lambda)^{3}} + \frac{2c_{1}}{(\beta+\lambda)^{3}} + \frac{6c_{1}c_{2}}{(\beta+\lambda)^{4}}\right) \quad (D-12)$$

$$B = \left(\frac{l}{(d+P)^{3}} + \frac{C_{l}}{(B+P)^{3}}\right)$$
(D-13)

$$y_{1,0}(R) = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{\sqrt{4\pi}} C_{0S} \Theta$$
 (D-14)

$$\int_{1,\pm 1} (R) = \frac{\sqrt{3}}{\sqrt{8\pi}} \quad Sin \Theta \quad (D-15)$$

$$\begin{split} \Gamma_{0} &= \left(\frac{16 \pi}{5}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \mathcal{I}_{2,0}\left(R\right) \left[\left(\frac{5R^{2}}{(2q)^{2}} + \frac{30R}{(2q)^{3}} + \frac{120}{(2q)^{4}} + \frac{360}{(2q)^{6}} + \frac{720}{(2q)^{5}R^{2}} + \frac{720}{(2q)^{7}R^{3}} \right) e^{-2qR} - \frac{720}{(2q)^{7}R^{3}} \\ &+ \mathcal{I}_{0,0}\left(R\right) \int 4\pi \left[\frac{R^{2}}{(2q)^{2}} + \frac{6R}{(2q)^{3}} + \frac{18}{(2q)^{4}} + \frac{24}{(2q)^{5}R} \right] e^{-2qR} \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} I_{\pm 1} &= \frac{1}{2} \int_{0,0} \sqrt{4\pi} \left(\frac{R^2}{(2q)^2} + \frac{6R}{(2q)^3} + \frac{18}{(2q)^4} + \frac{24}{(2q)^5 R} \right) e^{-2qR} \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \frac{24}{R(2q)^5} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{16\pi}{5} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{2,0} \left(R \right) \left[\left(\frac{5R^2}{(2q)^2} + \frac{30R}{(2q)^3} + \frac{120}{(2q)^4} + \frac{360}{(2q)^4 R} + \frac{720}{(2q)^6 R^2} + \frac{720}{(2q)^6 R^2} + \frac{720}{(2q)^7 R^3} \right) e^{-2qR} - \frac{720}{(2q)^7 R^3} \right] \qquad (D-17)$$

where
$$\int_{0,0} (R) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{4\pi}}$$
 (D-18)

$$\int_{2,0}^{} (R) = \frac{\sqrt{5}}{4\sqrt{\pi}} \left(3 \cos^2 \theta - 1 \right)$$
 (D-19)

APPENDIX E

List of integrals for $H^+ + He(1s^2) \longrightarrow H(1s) + He^+(1s)$

$$H_{0,0} = 2 \alpha \ell \left(1 + \frac{1}{\alpha R} \right)$$
 (E-1)

.

$$N_{0,0} = \frac{8\sqrt{8}}{(2+\alpha)^3} I_1(\alpha, R)$$
(E-2)

$$\frac{*}{N_{0,0}} = N_{0,0} \qquad (E-3)$$

$$\overline{H}_{o_{10}} = \left(\mu + \frac{1}{R}\right) e^{-2\mu R} + \left(\lambda + \frac{1}{R}\right) e^{-2\lambda R} + I_{4}$$
(E-4)

where

$$I_{4} = -\frac{\lambda^{3}}{R(\lambda^{2}-\mu^{2})^{3}} \left[\lambda e^{-2\mu R} \left\{ R \mu (\lambda^{2}-\mu^{2}) + (\lambda^{2}-3\mu^{2}) \right\} + e^{2\mu R} \left\{ R (\lambda^{2}-\mu^{2}) (2\mu^{2}-\lambda^{2}) + (\lambda^{2}-3\mu^{2}) \right\} \right]$$

$$+ e^{2\mu R} \left(-2\lambda R \right) \left\{ R (\lambda^{2}-\mu^{2}) (2\mu^{2}-\lambda^{2}) - \lambda (\lambda^{2}-3\mu^{2}) \right\} \right]$$

$$K_{010} = -\frac{4\sqrt{8} d^{3}}{(2+d)^{3}} \left[I(d) \cdot I_{1}(d,R) + 2 I_{2}(d,R) + (2+d)I_{1}(2+2d,R) + 2 I_{2}(2+2d,R) \right]$$

$$(E-6)$$

$$+ 2 I_{2}(2+2d,R) \right]$$

where

•

where

$$I(d) = \left[-\frac{2}{R} + (\alpha + 2 + \frac{2}{R}) e^{-(\alpha + 2)R} \right]$$
(E-7)

$$\overline{K_{o,o}} = \frac{4\sqrt{8}\alpha^{3}}{(2+d)^{3}} \left[\left\{ (\alpha + 2)(\alpha - 2) - (\alpha^{2} + \epsilon_{o}) \right\} I_{1}(\alpha, R) - 2 I_{3}(\alpha, R) + 2 \alpha I_{2}(\alpha, R) \right]$$

where

$$I_{1}(d, R) = 2 d_{1} \ell^{-\frac{10^{2}t}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \times (1 - \chi) \left(\frac{3R}{\Delta^{4}} + \frac{3}{\Delta^{5}} + \frac{R^{2}}{\Delta^{3}} \right) \ell^{-\Delta R} i \vartheta R \chi$$
(E-8)

$$I_{2}(x,R) = 2 e^{-\frac{i v^{2} t}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} (1-x) \left(\frac{R}{\Delta^{2}} + \frac{1}{\Delta^{3}}\right) e^{-AR} i v Rx dx$$

$$I_{3}(\mathcal{A},\mathcal{R}) = 2 \, \mathcal{A} \, e^{-\frac{i \, b^{2} t}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \mathcal{X} \, \left(\frac{\mathcal{R}}{\Delta^{2}} + \frac{i}{\Delta^{3}}\right) e^{-\Delta \mathcal{R}} \, e^{i \, \mathcal{O}.\mathcal{R} \, \mathcal{X}} e^{-\Delta \mathcal{R}} \, e^{i \, \mathcal{O}.\mathcal{R} \, \mathcal{X}}$$

$$(E-10)$$

Acknowledgements

I express my gratitude to my Supervisor Professor B.H. Bransden for suggesting the problem and for his guidance and encouragement throughout.

I also express my thanks to Dr. J.P. Coleman of the Department of Mathematics and fellow research students in the Department of Physics, in particular, Mr. K.A. Berrington and Mr. P.J. Walters for their co-operation.

My thanks are due to the Durham University and to the Newcastle University computing laboratory for computing facilities.

Finally, I gratefully acknowledge the financial help from the County Council of Durham and British Council Authority during my final year which helped me to complete my studies in time.

Figure Captions

- Figure 1. Total cross-sections for the 2¹S excitations of helium by proton impact.
- Curve Fl. Four channel coupling of Flannery (1970)
- Curve P2. Our results for the four channel coupling with the second order potential.
- Curve SB2. Second Born approximation (Holt et al, 1971a)
 - First Born approximation (Bell et al, 1968)
 - Our results for the four channel coupling
 without the second order potential.
- Figure 2. Total cross-sections for the 2¹p excitations of helium by proton impact.

Curve F1, P2, SB2, •, O, are as in Figure 1.

Figure 3. Figure 4, Figure 5, Figure 6.

are the capture probabilities versus Impact parameter. The dots indicate the computed values. The Normalization factor N has the values 1.96 at 30.2 Kev, 8.362 at 100 Kev, 73.10 at 250 Kev, 1190.5 at 500 Kev respectively.

Figure 7, Figure 8, Figure 9, Figure 10.

are the capture probabilities versus Impact parameter. The dots indicate the computed values. The Normalization factor N has the values 1.73 at 30.2 Kev, 11.38 at 100 Kev, 119.08 at 250 Kev, respectively.

Figure 11, Figure 12, Figure 13.

are the capture probabilities versus Impact parameter. The dots indicate the computed values. The normalization factor N has the values 2.59 at 30 Kev, 12.8 at 100 Kev, 121.3 at 250 Kev, respectively.

-96-

- Figure 14. Total capture cross-sections for helium atom by proton impact.
 - Present calculations (TC from Table 4)
 - Present calculations (DW2 from Table 4)
 - △ Present calculations (DWl from Table 4)
- Figure 15. Total capture cross-sections for helium atom by proton impact.
 - Present calculations (TC from Table 4)
 - Experimental results (Steir and Barrett, 1966, Barnett and Raynolds, 1958; Berkner et al, 1965).
- Figure 16. Total capture cross-sections for helium atom by proton impact.
 - Present calculations (TC from Table 4)
 - △ Bransden et al (1966)
 - Green et al (1965).
- <u>Figure 17</u>. Total capture cross-sections for helium atom by proton impact.
 - ----- Present calculations (DW1 from Table 4)
 - First Born approximation (Mapleton, 1961)
 - A Impulse approximation (Bransden & Cheshire, 1963).
- <u>Figure 18.</u> Capture probabilities versus impact parameter for 30.2 Kev.
 - P ---> Present calculation
 - G \longrightarrow Green et al (1965)
 - BS ---> Bransden & Sin Fai lam (1966)







FIG. 3.





.



E= 100 Kev (1)




.

DURHAM UNIVERSITY BOLENOS 15 FEB 1973 BEOTION LIMRARY





FIG.7.

30.2 Kev (2)



P



100 Kev (2)







E= 30 Kev. (3)



E=100 (3)



P

··· .





5

• • •

.











FIG.18.

I

.

Table 1

Total cross-sections (in cm^2) for the elastic scattering of protons from helium.

Energy in Kev.	Pl	Р2	
25	1.026	0.9861	
30	0.9231	0.8292	
40	0.8062	0.7555	
100	0.5079	0.4803	
150	0.3945	0.3138	
225	0.2942	0.2509	
400	0.1836	0.1550	
500	0.1510	0.1424	

Present calculations without the 2nd order potential
 Present calculations with the 2nd order potential

<u>Table 2</u>

Total cross-sections (in units of πa_o^2) for the 2ls excitations of helium by protons.

Energy in Kev.	Pl	P2	Fl	Bl	SB2
25	0.066	0.035	0.067	0.095	0.090
39	0.088	0.056	0.087	0.075	0.081
50	0.087	0.057			
100	0.058	0.046	0.058	0.038	0.041
150	0.040	0.031	0.038	0.027	0.026
225	0.026	0.021	0.025		0.020
400	0.014	0.011	0.014	0.010	0.010
500	0.011	0.009	0.010	0.008	

P1 Present calculations without the 2nd order potential.
P2 Present calculations with the 2nd order potential.
F1 Four-state approximation (Flannery, 1970)
B1 First Born approximation (Bell et al, 1968)
SB2 2nd. Born approximation (Holt et al, 1971).

Table 3

Total cross-sections (in units of πq_o^2) for the 2^{l_p} excitations of helium by protons.

Energy in Kev	Pl	P2	Fl	Bl	SB2
0r	0,020	0.027	0.007	0.201	
~>	0.030	0.025	0.037	0.204	
39	0.072	0.062	0.082	0.227	
50	0.090	0.090		0.228	
100	0.147	0.139	0.153	0.207	0.130
150	0.145	0.135	0.148	0.172	0.128
225	0.131	0.124	0.132		0.118
400	0.100 0.0		0.100	0.102	0.095
500	0.087	0.087	0.087	0.092	
[ļ	 			

P1	Present calculations without the 2nd order potential.
P2	Present calculation with the 2nd order potential.
Fl	Four-state approximation (Flannery 1970).
B1	First Born approximation (Bell et al, 1968).
SB2	2nd Born approximation (Holt et al. 1971).

ì

-100-

<u>Table 4</u>

Total cross-sections for electron capture by protons in helium

Cross - sections (10^{-16} cm^2)

_	Proton energy in Kev.	DW1	DW2	TC	BS	G	Bl	Expt.
	30	2.07	2.44	1.86	2.19	1.92	2.80	1.92(<u>a</u>)
	100	-l+ 2.68	3.29 ⁻¹	3.06-1	_1 2.90	-1 2.76	-1 3.0	2.76, ⁻¹ (a)
	250	1.73-2	_2 2.40	2.35-2			2.0	2.0 ⁻² (b)
	500	 1.06	-3 1.88	1.88-3			-3 1.0	8.0 ⁻⁴ (b)
	1000	-5 3•99	9•38 ⁵	-5 9•38	-5 7•4		-5 5.0	<u>-</u> 5 5.0 ⁻⁵ (ъ)
	10,000	-10 1.57		-10 4•55	-10 3.1			$(1.2 \stackrel{+}{-} \\ 0.4)^{-10} \\ (c)$

- The superscript indicates the power 10 by which the number is to be multiplied.
- DW1, DW2, TC are the present calculations following the case A, Case B, Case C in chapter 6.
- BS results of Bransden et al (1966)
- G results of Green et al (1965)
- Bl First Born approximation (Mapleton, 1961)

Expt. Experimental results, (a) Steir & Barnett, 1966,

(b) Barnett & Raynolds, 1958.

(c) Barkner et al, 1965.



References

Abrines, R., and Percival, I.C., 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc., 88, 861. Allison, S.K, 1958, Rev. Mod. Phys., 30, 1137. Askin, J., and Wick, G.C., 1952, Phys. Rev., 85, 686. Barkner, K.H., Kaplan, S.N., Paulikas, G.A. and Pyle, R.V., 1965 Phys. Rev., 140, A729-31. Barnett, C.F. and Raynolds, H.K., 1958, Phys. Rev., 109,355. Bassel, R.H. and Gerjuoy, E., 1960, Phys. Rev., 117, 749 Bates, D.R., 1958, Proc. Roy. Soc., A.244, 294. Bates, D.R., 1959, Proc. Phys. Soc. (LONDON), 73, 227. Betes, D.R. and Boyd, A.H., 1962a, Proc. Phys.Soc. (LONDON), 79, 710. Bates, D.R. and Boyd, A.H., 1962b, Proc. Phys. Soc. (LONDON), 80, 1301. Bates, D.R. and Dalgarno, A., 1952, Proc. Phys. Soc., A65, 919. Bates, D.R. and Griffling, G., 1953, Proc. Phys.Soc., A66, 961. Bates, D.R. and Mapleton, R.A., 1965, Proc. Phys. Soc., 88, 605. Bell, R.J., 1961, Proc. Phys. Soc., 78, 903. Bell, R.J., and Skinner, B.G., 1962, Proc. Phys. Soc. (LONDON), 80, 404. Bell, K.L., Kennedy, D.J., and Kingston, A.E., 1968. J. Phys. B2. 1037. Berrington, K.A., Bransden, B.H., and Coleman, J.P., 1972 Submitted to J. Phys. <u>B</u> Bethe, H., 1930, Ann.d Physik, 5, 325. Bransden, B.H., 1965, 'Advances in atomic and Molecular Physics' 1, 85. Bransden, B.H., 1970, 'Atomic collision theory', W.A. Benjamin, N.Y. Bransden, B.H., 1972, 'The theory of charge - exchange,' Report in progress in physics (To be published).

-102-

Bransden, B.H., and Cheshire, I., M., 1963, Proc. Phys. Soc. 81, 820. Bransden, B.H., and Coleman, J.P., 1972, J. Phys., <u>B5</u>, 537. Bransden, B.H., Coleman, J.P., and Sullivan, J., 1972, J. Phys. <u>B5</u>, 546. Bransden, B.H., Dalgarno, A., and King, N.M., 1954, Proc. Phys. Soc., A67, 1075. Bransden, B.H., and Sin Fai lam, L.T., 1966, Proc. Phys. Soc. 87, 653. Brinkman, H.C., and Knamers, H.A., 1930, Proc. Acad. Sci.Amst., 33, 973. Byron, F.W., JR., and Joachain, C.J., 1966, Phys. Rev., 146, 1-8. Castellijo, L., Percival, I.C., and Seaton, M.J., 1960, Proc. Roy.Soc., A254, 259. Callaway, J., and Bauer, E., 1965, Phys. Rev., 140, A1072. Callaway, J., and Dugan, A.F. 1966, Phys. Letters 21, 295. Cheshire, I.M., 1963, Proc. Phys. Soc., 83, 227. Cheshire, I.M., Galleher, D.F., and Taylor, A.J., 1970. J. Phys. <u>B3</u>, 813-32 Chew, G.F., 1950, Phys. Rev., 80, 196. Chew, G.F., and Goldberger, M.L., 1952, Phys. Rev., 87, 778. Chew, G.F., and Wick, G.C., 1952, Phys. Rev., 85, 636. Cohen, M., and McEachran, R.P., 1967, Proc. Phys.Soc., 92,37. Coleman, J.P., 1970, J. Phys. <u>B3</u>, 1413-1416. Cook, C.J., 1963, Proc. Phys. Soc., 81, 789. Corinal desi, E., and Trainor, L., 1952, Nuovo Cimento, 9, 940. Denis, A., Dufay, M., and Gaillard, M., 1967, Compt. Rend., 264, 440. Dettman, K., and Leibfried, G., 1966, Phys. Rev., 148, 1271. Drisko, R.M., 1955, Thesis, Carnegie Institute of Technology, (unpublished). Eckert, C., 1930, Phys. Rev., 36, 878. Fadeev, L.D., 1961a, Soviet Phys. JETP, 12, 1014.

-104-

Fadeev, L.D., 1961b, Soviet Phys., Doklady, 6, 384. Fynman, R.P., 1949, Phys. Rev., 76, 769. Flannery, M.R., 1970, J. Phys. <u>B3</u>, 306-14. Gabriel, A.H., and Heddle, D.W.O., 1960, Proc. Roy. Soc., A258, 124. Galleher, D.F., and Wilets, L., 1968, Phys., 169, 139. Galliard, M., 1966, Compt., Rendn, 263, 549. Gailly, T., 1968, Ph.D. Thesis, University of Washington, Seattle (unpublished). Grant, J., and Shapiro, J., 1965, Proc. Phys. Soc., 86, 1007 Green, L.C., Mulder, M.M., Lewis, M.N. and Woll, J.W., 1954, Phys. Rev., 93, 757-61. Green, T.A., Stanley, H.E., and Chiang, Y.C., 1965, Helv, Phys. Acta, 38, 109-24. Goldberg, L. and Clogston, A.M., 1939, Phys. Rev., 56, 696. Helbig, H.F., and Everhart, E., 1964, Phys. Rev. 136, A674. Holt, A.R., Hunt, J. and Moiseiwitch, B.L, 1971b, J. Phys. <u>B4</u>, 1318. Holt, A.R. and Moiseiwitch B.L., 1968, J. Phys. B.Ser 2, 1, 36. Jackson, J.D., and Schiff, H., 1953, Phys. Rev., 89, 359. Jost, R., and Pais, A., 1951, Phys. Rev., 82, 840. Kingston, A.E., Moiseiwitsch, B.L., and Skinner, B.G., 1960, Proc. Roy. Soc., A. 258, 237-44. Kohn, W., 1952, Phys. Rev., 87, 539. Lippman, B.A., 1956, Phys. Rev., 102, 264. Lovelace, C., 1964a, 'Strong interactions and High energy Physics', ed. R.G., Moorhouse (Oliver and Boyd, Edinburgh) p.437. Lovell, S.E., and McElroy, N.B., 1963, Proc. Roy. Soc., A283, 100. Manning, I, 1965, Phys. Rev., 139, B495. Mapleton, R.A., 1961, Phys. Rev., 122, 528. Mapleton, R.A., 1963a, Phys. Rev., 130, 1829.

Mapleton, R.A., 1963b, Phys. Rev., 130, 1839. Mapleton, R.A., 1965, Proc. Phys. Soc., 85, 1109. Mapleton, R.A., 1966, Phys. Rev., 145, 25. Mapleton, R.A., 1968, J. Phys. B, (2), 1, 847. Martin, W.C., 1960, J. Res. Natl. Bur. Std., 64A, 19-24. Massey, H.S.W. and Mohr, C.B.O., 1934, Proc. Roy. Soc., A146,880. McCarroll, R., 1961, Proc. Roy. Soc., A264, 547. McCarroll, R., and McElroy, M.B., 1962, Proc. Roy.Soc. A266,428. McDowell, M.R.C., 1961, Proc. Roy. Soc. (London), A264, 277. McDowell, M.R.C., and Coleman, J.P., 1970, Introduction to the theory of Ion-atom collision' (North Holland, publishing company Amsterdam-London). McElroy, M.B., 1963, Proc. Roy. Soc., A272, 542. Moiseiwitsch, B.L., and Perrin, R., 1955, Proc. Roy.Soc.85,51. Moiseiwitsch, B.L. and Stewart, A.L., 1954, Proc. Phys.Soc., 467. 1069. Nikolaev, V.S., 1967, Soviety Phys. JETP, 24, 847. Omidvar, K., 1967, Phys. Rev., 153, 121. Oppenheimer, J.R., 1928, Phys. Rev., 31, 349. Pomilla, F.R. and Milford, S.N., 1966, Astr.J., 144, 1174. Pradham, T., 1957, Phys. Rev. 105, 1250. Rotenberg, M., 1962, Ann. Phys. 19, 262 Rubin, M., Sugar, R., and Tiktopoulos, G., 1966, Phys. Rev., 146, 1130. Rubin, M., Sugar, R. and Tiktopoulos, G., 1967, Phys. Rev., 162, 1555. Saha, M.N., and Basu, D., 1945, Indian J. Phys., 19, 121. Shull, H., and Lowden, P.O., 1956, J. Chem. Phys., 25, 1035. Sin fai lam, L., T., 1967, Proc. Phys. Soc. (London), 92, 67. Skinner, B.G., 1962, Proc. Phys. Soc. (London), 79, 717. Stebbings, R.F., Young, R.A., Oxley, C.L. and Eharhadt, H., 1965, Phys. Rev., 138, A1312.

Steir, P.M. and Barnett, 1956, Phys. Rev., 103, 895.
Sullivan, J., Coleman, J.P., and Bransden, B.H., 1972, Submitted to J. Phys. B.
Takayyabgi, K., 1952, Sci. Rep., Saitama Univ., A, 33.
Thomas, L.H., 1927, Proc. Roy. Soc., All4,561.
Thomas, E.W., and Bent, G.D., 1967, Phys.Rev., 164,143.
Van Den Bos, J., 1968b, Phys. Rev., 181, 191.
"Watson, C., 1958, 'Theory of Bessel functions', Comb. Univ. Press.
Wilets, L. and Gallaher, D.F., 1966, Phys. Rev., 147, 13.
Wilf, H.S., and Ralstan, A., 1967, 'Mathematical methods of Digital computers' Wiley, New York.
Wooling, M.J. and McDowell, M.R.C., 1972. J. Phys. B. 1320.

6031. 15100 111 SEOFID - ,